
Board of Director’s Meeting
Friday, July 21, 2023

8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.

500 Chadbourne Road, Suite A
Fairfield, CA 94534



The WDB is an EO/AA/ADA Employer/Program.  TDD Relay #1-800-735-2922 
Auxiliary Aids and Services are available upon sufficient notice to individuals with disabilities 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING NOTICE 
Friday, July 21, 2023 

8:30 – 10:30 a.m. 
500 Chadbourne Road, Suite A 

Fairfield, CA 94534 

MEETING AGENDA 

I. Call to Order 
II. Introductions
III. Agenda Additions/Deletions
IV. Public Comment – Workforce Development Board (WDB) members, staff, or the public may

address the WDB on subjects relating to employment and training in Solano County. A time

limit of 3 minutes may be imposed.  No action may be taken on non-agenda items.

V. Consent Calendar
A. Approval of May 19, 2023, Meeting Minutes
B. Review and Acceptance of the Workforce Development Board of Solano County’s Final

Sub-Monitoring Report for Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs 

PAGE 
1 
8 

VI. Action Items
A. Approval to Elect Vice Chair, Chris Churchill, to Serve as Board Chair the Duration of 

the Two-Year Term of Office through June 30, 2024

B. Approval of the New Workforce Board Appointment, Ms. Deanna Hurn of Miracle Math 
Coaching, as Business Representative 

12 

13 

VII. Informational Reports
A. Board Chair (Verbal)
B. Committee Chairs (Verbal)
C. President/Executive Director (Verbal)
D. Reports (Written) 19 

VIII. Discussion Items
A. FY22-23 Accomplishments and Activities and Looking Forward to FY 23-24
B. Job Quality Framework 35 

IX. Adjournment

Note: The next Board of Director’s meeting is scheduled for Friday, September 22, 2023





BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
May 19, 2023 

I. Call to Order 
Board Chair, Fadi Halabi, called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. Quorum was established. 

Members Present: Chris Churchill, Suzanne Castano, Kelli Courson, Mark DeWeerdt, Shannon 
Dodds, Mario Giuliani, Fadi Halabi, Tim Healer, Gerald Huber, Chris Huxsoll, Jon Riley, Melvinia 
King, Thomas Stuebner, and David Tam 
Members Absent: Danny Bernardini, Tiffany Donahue, Mary Dugbartey, Celia Esposito-Noy, 
Viola Lujan, Sabrina Martin, and Stephen Reese, 
Staff Present: Heather Henry, Tammy Gallentine, Marion Aiken, Lauren Bender, and Tracy White 
Guests/General Public: Megan Richards,  

II. Introductions
There were no introductions.

III. Agenda Changes/Deletions
There were no agenda changes/deletions.

IV. Public Comment
There were no public comments.

V. Closed Session
At 8:39 a.m., Mr. Halabi closed the public meeting and adjourned into a closed session.
A. Pursuant to §54957.6(b)(1) Annual Evaluation of the WDB’s President/Executive

Director, Heather Henry 
B. Pursuant to §54957.6 (a) Review of Proposed Retirement Plan – 2022 Employer

Contribution 
C. Pursuant to §54957.6 (a)Discussion Regarding Employee Matters

VI. Reconvene Open Session
At 9:29 a.m., the public meeting was reconvened. The following report was given:
A. Pursuant to §54957.6(b)(1) Report on any Action Resulting from Closed Session
B. Pursuant to §54957.6(a) Report on any Action Resulting from Closed Session
C. Pursuant to §54957.6(a) Report on any Action Resulting from Closed Session

MOTION #1
A motion was made and seconded to approve a salary increase to match staff’s increase to be
effective retroactively to October 1, 2022.
(DeWeerdt/Riley)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

Mr. Halabi noted a letter had been provided to the Board from an anonymous staff member as part
of Ms. Henry’s evaluation and requested this letter be included as part of the minutes. A copy of
the letter has been incorporated into the minutes.

MOTION #2
A motion was made and seconded to approve a 5% contribution to the Discretionary
Employee Retirement Fund for 2022.
(Riley/King)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

Mr. Halabi added that an ad-hoc committee would be formed to further look at performance,
financial responsibility and retention planning for the Executive Director’s position. Committee
members are to include Mario Giuliani, Shannon Dodds, Chris Churchill, and Jerry Huber.

1



VII. Informational Reports 
A. Board Chair 

Board Chair, Mr. Halabi, reminded members that the annual Conflict of Interest forms are due. 
Ms. Gallentine confirmed the forms were available to be completed and signed so they may be 
submitted prior to members leaving the meeting. An announcement was made that Mr. Riley 
would be retiring from the Board to be effective at the end of the fiscal year. Mr. Riley’s 
recommended replacement, Mr. Glenn Loveall, is on the agenda for approval. Further, Mr. 
Halabi announced his own retirement as Board Chair but will remain as a member. An ad-hoc 
Nominating Committee was established to include Mario Guiliani, Mark DeWeerdt, Melvinia 
King, and David Tam. Mr. Churchill will act as interim Board Chair until a new Board Chair 
is elected. 
 

B. Committee Chairs 
Mr. Halabi stated the Executive Committee met on May 5, 2023, where the Executive 
Director’s performance was discussed. The committee also approved an amendment on behalf 
of the full Board to increase RDA’s contract by $13,000 for the remainder of the fiscal year. 
 
Ms. King gave a recap of the Planning & Oversight Committee meeting held on April 25, 2023. 
The committee reviewed and approved several contracts, the local area subsequent designation 
and local board recertification, and a change to the Conflict of Interest and Code of Conduct 
Policy. These items have been included in the Board’s meeting agenda. The committee also 
discussed the Job Quality Framework created by the North Bay workforce boards. The Board 
will receive a presentation of the framework at the July Board meeting. 
 
Mr. Giuliani provided a brief recap of the Budget Committee held on May 11, 2023. The 
committee discussed the transitions with fiscal staffing, as well as reviewing and approving the 
proposed projected budget for fiscal year 2023-24. It was also discussed that the committee 
would meet again in July to develop policies for financial reserves and budget modifications 
and thresholds.   
 

C. President/Executive Director Report 
Ms. Henry announced WDB is starting to highlight Solano across the state and nation. During 
her attendance at the National Association of Workforce Development Professionals 
(NAWDP) Conference in New Orleans, a presentation was given on the approach to program 
design and funding in Solano County. Two additional presentations will be given at the 
California Workforce Association Workcon Conference at the end of May. One presentation 
will be about how ARPA funding was utilized in partnership with the county for workforce 
initiatives. The second presentation will be about the incumbent worker training program for 
CNAs. WDB is becoming noticed for the innovative work the organization is doing while 
pushing the needle forward. 
 
Spending is a little behind for this fiscal year. Part of the reason is because three of the regional 
grants from the state are delayed.  Only one agreement has been executed that was intended to 
start January 1st. Funds will be spent later in the fiscal year but can be carried over into the next 
fiscal year. Some of the ARPA contracts had a late start but they are moving forward. There 
are three concerns for this fiscal year. One concern is hitting youth work experience percentage. 
The organization relies heavily on the youth contractor to meet that percentage. This is the first-
year contract with the youth provider; however, staff have been working with the provider to 
help launch work experience with local businesses this summer. This will move us forward. 
Meeting training expenditure requirements is another concern, but we continue to move 
forward towards our goal. The other concern which also affects fiscal transition is admin vs. 
program rate. There has been a challenge to ensure admin rates stay under 10% of overall 
expenditures. 
 
Programmatically, the WDB has had over 11,000 people coming into the AJCC in both the 
Fairfield and Vallejo locations this fiscal year. Staff has expanded the locations for Road to 

2



Employment to Vacaville and in the last month, there have been over 50 people who have 
attended the AJCC Welcome to learn more about WDB’s available services and programs. 
This, plus onsite recruitment events, is helping with enrollment numbers. The WIOA numbers 
for the Adult Program are on track while Dislocated Worker (DW) numbers remain minimal. 
Staff continue to work with the EDD to strengthen the flow of referrals that has traditionally 
been strong for DW programs. The first career fair since the pandemic took place on April 13th. 
There were 60 businesses and 14 resources for job seekers. There were over 200 attendees and 
over 300 interviews onsite or scheduled. The Business Services team brought in over $11,000 
in sponsorship. 
 
The ARPA #1 contract for workforce services and SBDC is on track to be completed this fiscal 
year. Staff worked with the county to extend the training timeline for a portion of this contract. 
SBDC has been doing Solano Success which is a cohort for small businesses. It has been so 
successful that Napa County is interested in doing this program as well.  

 
D. Reports 

There was no discussion on this item. 
 
VIII. Consent Calendar 

A. Approval of March 23, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
B. Approval of the Workforce Development Board Local Area Subsequent Designation 

and Local Board Recertification for Program Year 2023-25, and Give the Board Chair 
Signature Authority 

C. Approval of the Conflict of Interest and Code of Conduct Policy, Change 1 
D. Approval of a 3rd Year Contract Renewal with California Human Development for One 

Stop Operator Services Not to Exceed an Additional Contract Amount of $23,500; Give 
President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, 
and Make Administrative Changes, as Needed 

E. Approval for a Contract with a 2nd Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Youth Program Services Provider, On the Move (VOICES Solano), for a First 
Year Contract Not to Exceed $148,022, Give President/Executive Director Authority to 
Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, and Make Administrative Changes, as 
Needed 

F. Approval for a Contract with NetXperts, LLC to Serve as the Managed IT Systems 
Service Provider for a First Year Contract not to Exceed $56,400; Give 
President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, 
and Make Administrative Changes, as Needed 

G. Approval for a Contract with Saavedra Fam Inc. for Janitorial, Maintenance and 
Facilities Support Services for a First Year Contract Not to Exceed $65,232; Give 
President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, 
and Make Administrative Changes, as Needed 

H. Approval of the Supportive Services and Incentive Policy, Change 1 
 
MOTION #3 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the consent calendar, as presented. 
(Huber/King)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
IX. Action Items 

A. Approval of the New Workforce Board Appointment, Mr. Glenn Loveall of Napa-
Solano Central Labor Council, as Labor Representative 
Mr. Riley gave a brief overview of Mr. Loveall’s background. He will be taking over as 
Executive Director at the Labor Council in September. Glenn is very active in the workforce 
development community arena and will be a great addition to the Board. 
 
 
 

3



MOTION #4 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the appointment of Mr. Glenn Loveall of Napa-
Solano Central Labor Council, as labor representative 
(Giuliani/DeWeerdt)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 

  
B. Approval of the Proposed Preliminary Budget for Program Year 2023-24 

Ms. Henry gave a brief overview of agenda item IX.B, which was included as part of the agenda 
package and incorporated herein and noted the preliminary budget was based on anticipated 
WIOA allocations. A presentation was provided to review budget projections, types of revenue, 
and projected expenditures. 

 
MOTION #5 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the proposed preliminary budget for program 
year 2023-24. 
(King/Tam)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
C. Approval for a 3rd Year Contract Renewal with RDA Consulting, SPC for Regional 

Organizer and Regional Training Coordinator Services Not to Exceed an Additional 
Contract Amount of $84,941; Give President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize 
and Sign the Approved Contract, and Make Administrative Changes, as Needed.  
Ms. Henry gave a brief presentation of agenda item IX.C, which was included as part of the 
agenda package and incorporated herein, noting the state requires the WDB to have a regional 
organizer and regional training coordinator. In the North Bay, the choice was made to not have 
this be within one specific organization but instead to have an external source that facilitates 
all the efforts. This is the third year of the contract with RDA Consulting and is budgeted based 
on grant funding for this purpose.  
 

MOTION #6 
A motion was made and seconded to approve a 3rd year contract renewal with RDA 
Consulting SPC for Regional Organizer and Regional Training Coordinator services not to 
exceed an additional contract amount of $84,941; give President/Executive Director authority 
to finalize and sign the approved contract, and make administrative changes, as needed. 
(Huber/Giuliani)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
D. Approval for a 2nd Year Contract Renewal with First Place for Youth as the Workforce 

Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Youth Program Services Provider Not to 
Exceed an Additional Contract Amount of $176,495; Give President/Executive Director 
Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, and Make Administrative 
Changes, as Needed 
Ms. Henry gave a brief presentation of agenda item IX.D, which was included as part of the 
agenda package and incorporated herein, noting this contract represents the second year with 
the youth provider. From an outcome standpoint, the idea of the contract for disconnected youth 
is not to enroll a number youth in the program each year but to serve a number of youths instead.  
 

MOTION #7 
A motion was made and seconded to approve a 2nd year contract renewal with First Place for 
Youth as the WIOA Youth Program services provider not to exceed an additional contract 
amount of $176,495; give President/Executive Director authority to finalize and sign the 
approved contract, and make administrative changes, as needed. 
(King/Guiliani)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
E. Approval for a Contract with Student Conservation Association, Inc. for Climate 

Transition Summer Youth Work Experience for an Amount Not to Exceed $127,745.55; 
Give President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, 
and Make Administrative Changes, as Needed 

4



Ms. Henry gave a brief overview of agenda item IX.E, which was included as part of the agenda 
package and incorporated herein, highlighting staff has been working with Solano County 
Office of Education and Solano Land Trust to assist youth to see what climate transition careers 
and training are available. Solano Land Trust’s goal is to help youth better connect with their 
natural environment. Work sites for this project are being finalized. The schedule will include 
Fridays to be an opportunity to have lunch with leaders.  

 
MOTION #8 
A motion was made and seconded to approve a contract with Student Conservation 
Association, Inc. for Climate Transition Summer Youth Work Experience for an amount not 
to exceed $127,745.55; give President/Executive Director authority to finalize and sign the 
approved contract, and make administrative changes, as needed. 
(Huber/DeWeerdt)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
F. Approval for a Contract with Foundation for California Community Colleges to Serve as 

Employer of Record for Work Experience Clients Not to Exceed $139,279; Give 
President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, and 
Make Administrative Changes, as Needed 
Ms. Henry gave a brief overview of agenda item IX.F, which was included as part of the agenda 
package and incorporated herein. Since the agenda packet was published, staff received notice 
from the contractor that they are reviewing the overall budget section as they finalize their 
federally agreed upon indirect cost rate. There is essentially a 10% de minimus admin cost rate 
unless otherwise negotiated based on specific guidelines. The rate recently was assessed at 
18.8% so this will change the budget. The total contract amount will not be exceeded however 
the budgeted line items may potentially change along with the potential number of work 
experience clients served.   
 

MOTION #9 
A motion was made and seconded to approve a contract with Foundation for California 
Community Colleges to serve as employer of record for work experience clients not to exceed 
$139,279; give President/Executive Director authority to finalize and sign the approved 
contract, and make administrative changes, as needed. 
(Churchill/Tam)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
G. Approval for a Contract with California Employer Association for Employer Training 

Services, funded by the American Rescue Plan Act, for an Amount Not to Exceed $99,820; 
Give President/Executive Director Authority to Finalize and Sign the Approved Contract, 
and Make Administrative Changes, as Needed 
Ms. Henry gave a brief overview of agenda item IX.G, which was included as part of the agenda 
package and incorporated herein, noting a survey of topics important to employers was 
conducted to assist in determining which training programs would be made available. The 
contractor will also be assisting with outreach to businesses. With funding, these trainings will 
be offered to businesses at no charge. 
 

MOTION #10 
A motion was made and seconded to approve a contract with California Employer 
Association for Employer Training Services, funded by the American Rescue Plan Act, for 
an amount not to exceed $99,820; give President/Executive Director authority to finalize and 
sign the approved contract, and make administrative changes, as needed. 
(Churchill/DeWeerdt)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
H. Recission of COVID Addendums to 2018-04 Incumbent Worker, 2018-07 On-the-Job 

Training, and 2020-04 Supportive Services and Incentives Policies  
Ms. Henry gave a brief overview of agenda item IX.H, which was included as part of the agenda 
package and incorporated herein, noting that there were three addendums to existing policies 
during COVID to provide better service delivery. Since WIOA funding is federal, staff was 

5



able to keep waivers and funding expansions in place until the end of the federal state of 
emergency which ended May 11, 2023. 
 

MOTION #11 
A motion was made and seconded to approve to rescind COVID Addendums to 2018-04 
Incumbent Worker, 2018-07 On-the-Job Training, and 2020-04 Supportive Services and 
Incentives Policies. 
(DeWeerdt/Huber)  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

IX. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:31 a.m.  

 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tammy Gallentine, Executive & Board Support Specialist 

6



7



 
 
 

AGENDA SUBMITTAL 
 

SUBJECT 
Review and Accept the Workforce Development 
Board of Solano County’s Final Sub-Monitoring 
Report for Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs 

MEETING DATE 
July 21, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 
V.B 

 

FROM 
Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 
YES       NO 

ATTACHMENTS 
A 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff and the Planning & Oversight Committee are recommending that the Board of Directors review 
and accept the WDB’s final sub-monitoring report for the Adult and Dislocated Worker program.  
 
SUMMARY 
The WDB staff conducted an internal monitoring of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs during the week of March 6, 2023, per WIOA sub-
recipient monitoring regulations. 
 
The Performance and Compliance Analyst conducted a thorough review to: 

• Ensure only eligible participants were enrolled and applicable eligibility documentation was 
collected and properly recorded; 

• Ensure proper maintenance and content of participant records to include data validation 
requirements; 

• Confirm appropriate and adequate case notes were documented ensuring continuity from time 
of application through completion of services; 

• Verify all relevant participant data and services had been accurately and timely recorded into 
the state’s MIS;  

• Ensure programs and activities were effective in meeting the goals established in the four-year 
local plan; 

• Verify that the training and work environment were safe for participants and staff members; 
• Confirm compliance with the ADA and nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of 

WIOA and other federal and state nondiscrimination laws; and  
• Ensure that appropriate grant and program management policies and procedures as defined by 

WIOA were in place. 

The final review of the Adult and Dislocated Worker internal monitoring report is presented, outlining 
the observed best practices, concerns, and potential findings.  
 
 
 

8



DISCUSSION: 
Background: 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) guidelines require adherence to subrecipient 
federal compliance and monitoring guidelines. As the WDB is also the provider of WIOA Title I 
activities, the Local Board is required to monitor its own activities. Policies and practices are in place 
for internal firewalls between staff providing services, staff responsible for oversight of the service, 
and the Local Board. 
 
The Planning and Oversight Committee is responsible for receiving the programmatic monitoring of 
the Comprehensive and Affiliate AJCCs and the WDB WIOA Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth 
programs. These internal monitoring reviews occur annually. 
 
The internal Adult and Dislocated Worker monitoring process included a(n): 

• Desk review of Adult and Dislocated Worker policies and procedures, training agreements, and 
a pre-monitoring questionnaire completed by Adult and Dislocated Worker program staff; 

• On-site monitoring visit of the WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker program files; and an 
• Interview with an Adult/Dislocated Worker staff member regarding service delivery and 

knowledge of compliance requirements. 
 
Summary of Final Monitoring Review 
In general, the Performance and Compliance Analyst found the Adult and Dislocated Worker programs 
in compliance. Areas of best practice, concern, and potential findings were observed during the 
monitoring. One finding was identified regarding entry of activities into the CalJOBS data management 
system. 
 
A draft monitoring report was submitted to the Adult and Dislocated Worker staff documenting 
potential compliance issues and findings on April 19, 2023. The Adult and Dislocated Worker staff 
responded and corrected any findings noted on the report. A final monitoring report was issued on June 
14, 2023, and presented to the Planning & Oversight Committee at their June 27, 2023, meeting. 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY: Heather Henry, President/Executive Director. Please contact Sonam 
Rajbhandary at 707-863-3510 if you have any questions regarding the information in this report. 

9



сκмпκнлно 

{ƻƭŀƴƻ !Řǳƭǘ ŀƴŘ 5ƛǎƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ²ƻǊƪŜǊ ²Lh! tǊƻƎǊŀƳǎ 
!¢¢bΥ aŀǊƛƻƴ !ƛƪŜƴΣ ²ƻǊƪŦƻǊŎŜ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ 
рлл /ƘŀŘōƻǳǊƴŜ wŘΣ {ǳƛǘŜ млл 
CŀƛǊŦƛŜƭŘΣ /! фпроп 

RE: Final Sub-Monitoring Report for Adult and Dislocated Worker Program 

5ŜŀǊ aǊΦ !ƛƪŜƴΣ 

¢Ƙƛǎ Ŧƛƴŀƭ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛǎ ǘƻ ƛƴŦƻǊƳ ȅƻǳ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ²ƻǊƪŦƻǊŎŜ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ .ƻŀǊŘ ό²5.ύ ƻŦ 
{ƻƭŀƴƻ /ƻǳƴǘȅΩǎ ǎǳōπƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ !Řǳƭǘ ŀƴŘ 5ƛǎƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ²ƻǊƪŜǊ tǊƻƎǊŀƳ ό!5κ5²ύΣ ²ƻǊƪŦƻǊŎŜ 
LƴƴƻǾŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘȅ !Ŏǘ ό²Lh!ύ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ƻŦ Wǳƭȅ нлнл ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ 5ŜŎŜƳōŜǊ нлннΦ  

¢ƘŜ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜ ƻŦ ƻǳǊ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ǿŀǎ ǘƻ ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜ ǘƘŜ ƭŜǾŜƭ ƻŦ ²Lh! ŎƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜ ōȅ !5κ5² ǿƛǘƘ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 
ŦŜŘŜǊŀƭ ŀƴŘ ǎǘŀǘŜ ƭŀǿǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ƛƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ŦŜŘŜǊŀƭΣ ǎǘŀǘŜΣ ŀƴŘ ƭƻŎŀƭ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŦƛǎŎŀƭ ŀƴŘ 
ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŀǘƛŎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΦ CƻǊ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǾƛŜǿΣ ǿŜ ŦƻŎǳǎŜŘ ƻƴ !5κ5²Ωǎ 5Ŝǎƪ 
wŜǾƛŜǿΣ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ ŦƛƭŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ ƛƴǘŜǊǾƛŜǿǎΦ  

¢ƘŜ ²5. ŎƻƭƭŜŎǘŜŘ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ŦƻǊ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ōȅ ǊŜǾƛŜǿƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎΣ hƴπǘƘŜπWƻō ¢ǊŀƛƴƛƴƎ 
όhW¢ύ ŀƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘΣ ¢Ǌŀƴǎƛǘƛƻƴŀƭ Wƻōǎ ό¢Wύ ²ƻǊƪǎƛǘŜ ŀƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ŎƻƭƭŜŎǘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ !5κ5² 
ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ǉǳŜǎǘƛƻƴƴŀƛǊŜΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ŀƭǎƻ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ŦƛƴŘƛƴƎǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ 5Ŝǎƪ wŜǾƛŜǿ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ 
ƛƴǘŜǊǾƛŜǿǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ²5. Ƙŀǎ ŜȄŀƳƛƴŜŘ ŎƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ ²Lh!Σ ǘƘŜ ¦ƴƛŦƻǊƳ DǳƛŘŀƴŎŜ ŀǘ 
нл /Cw ǇŀǊǘǎ стуπ суоΦ 

AD/DW REVIEW RESULTS 

Areas of Best Practice 

• !5κ5² ǎǘŀŦŦ ǿŜǊŜ ŦƻǳƴŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ǾŜǊȅ ƪƴƻǿƭŜŘƎŜŀōƭŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǾŀǊƛŜǘȅ ƻŦ ǘƻƻƭǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ
ǘƻ Ƨƻō ǎŜŜƪŜǊǎΣ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǊŜŀǎ ƻŦ /ƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜΦ

• {ǘŀŦŦ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǾŜǊȅ ŎƻƻǇŜǊŀǘƛǾŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǿƘƻƭŜ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎΦ
• CƛƭŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƭŀōŜƭƭŜŘ ǇǊƻǇŜǊƭȅ ǎƻ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ŜŀǎƛŜǊ ǘƻ Ǝƻ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜƳΦ ¢ƘŜ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊ ŀǇǇǊŜŎƛŀǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ƛŘŜŀ ƻŦ

5ǳƳƳȅ ŦƛƭŜ ƴŀƳŜŘ ŀǎ .ŀǊŀŎƪ hōŀƳŀ ŦƛƭŜ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿŀǎ ǳǎŜŘ ŦƻǊ ǘǊŀƛƴƛƴƎ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜǎΦ
• /ŀǎŜ ƴƻǘŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ŘŜǘŀƛƭŜŘ ŀƴŘ Ŝŀǎȅ ǘƻ Ŧƻƭƭƻǿ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘΦ

Area of Noncompliance and Corrective Action: 

Finding One (1): 
Cause:  
CǊƻƳ ²Lh! ммсΥ άLƴ ǇǊŜǇŀǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀǘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘǎ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ǎǳōǎŜŎǘƛƻƴΣ ŜŀŎƘ {ǘŀǘŜ ǎƘŀƭƭ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘ 
ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎΣ ŎƻƴǎƛǎǘŜƴǘ ǿƛǘƘ ƎǳƛŘŜƭƛƴŜǎ ƛǎǎǳŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅΣ ƛƴ ŎƻƴƧǳƴŎǘƛƻƴ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅ ƻŦ 
9ŘǳŎŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ŎƻƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘǎ ƛǎ ǾŀƭƛŘ ŀƴŘ ǊŜƭƛŀōƭŜΦέ 

10

ATTACHMENT A



Observation: 
hƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƭŜǎ ό/ŀƭ Wƻōǎ L5Υ ротппсрлфύ ƘŀŘ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘƛǾŜ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƭŜ ŀƴŘ ǎƘƻǿƴ ŀǎ ŜȄǇŜƴŘŜŘ ōǳǘ 
ƴƻǘ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ƛƴ /ŀƭ WƻōǎΦ  

Corrective Action: 
!5κ5² Ƴǳǎǘ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŀǘ ŀƭƭ ǘƘŜ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘƛǾŜ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƭŜ ŀǊŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ƛƴ /ŀƭ WƻōǎΦ tƭŜŀǎŜ ƳŀƪŜ ǎǳǊŜ 
ǘƘŀǘ !5κ5² ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŎƻƳǇƭƛŀƴǘ ƻƴ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘƛǾŜ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǿƛƭƭ ƴƻǘ ǊŜǇŜŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ŜǊǊƻǊ ŀƎŀƛƴΦ 
¢ƘŜ ²5. ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘǎ ǊŜǾƛǎƛǘƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎ ǿƛǘƘ ǎǘŀŦŦ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ Ŧǳƭƭ ǎǘŀŦŦ ǳƴŘŜǊǎǘŀƴŘƛƴƎΦ 

WDBSC Response: 
 Lǘ ƛǎ ŎƭŜŀǊƭȅ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǎǳǇǇƻǊ ǾŜ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŀŎ Ǿƛ Ŝǎ ŀǊŜ 
ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ƛƴ /ŀƭ Wh.{Φ  .ƻǘƘ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘǎ ǎǘŀǘŜ ǘƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎΥ 

Supportive Services Policy & Procedure ς “The use of funds is based on their availability. Supportive 

services provided must be reasonable, necessary, appropriate, and allowable. It is the responsibility of staff 

to ensure allowable, reasonable, and appropriate utilization of supportive services funds. Such justification 

will be documented via case notes in Cal JOBS, with an explanation of the lack of community resources 

available to the participant.” 

¢ƘŜǊŜŦƻǊŜΣ ǘƘŜ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ Ŧǳƭƭȅ ŀŎŎŜǇǘŜŘ ŀƴŘ ²5.{/ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ¢ŜŀƳ ǿƛƭƭ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ 
ǘƘŀǘ ōƻǘƘ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŀƭ ƎǳƛŘŜƭƛƴŜǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǎǘŀŦŦ ǇŜǊƛƻŘƛŎŀƭƭȅΦ  5ƻŎǳƳŜƴǘŜŘ 
ƛƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƛƳŜƭƛƴŜǎ ǘƻ ŜƴǘŜǊ ǎǳŎƘ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŎŀǎŜ ƴƻǘŜǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ŦƻǊ 
ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀƴǘǎΩ ŎŀǎŜ ŦƛƭŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ ŀŎǘƛǾŜ ŜƴǊƻƭƭƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǘŜƴǘƛƻƴ ǇŜǊƛƻŘǎΦ  ¢ƘŜǎŜ ŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ƻŎŎǳǊ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ ŦƛǎŎŀƭ ȅŜŀǊΣ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлноΣ ŀƴŘ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴǎ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴǎΣ ƛǎǎǳŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ 
ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘƛƻƴǎ ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƭŜǘǘŜǊΦ 

WDB Conclusion: 
¢Ƙŀƴƪ ȅƻǳ ŦƻǊ ŀŎŎŜǇǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊϥǎ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ ǊŜƎŀǊŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ 
ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŀƭ ƎǳƛŘŜƭƛƴŜǎΦ ²Ŝ ŀǊŜ ǇƭŜŀǎŜŘ ǘƻ ƘŜŀǊ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ²5.{/ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ¢ŜŀƳ ƛǎ Ŧǳƭƭȅ ŎƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŘ ǘƻ 
ƛƳǇƭŜƳŜƴǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘŜŘ ŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ ŜƴǎǳǊƛƴƎ Ŏƻƴǘƛƴǳƻǳǎ ƛƳǇǊƻǾŜƳŜƴǘ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƻǊƎŀƴƛȊŀǘƛƻƴΦ ²Ŝ 
ŀŎƪƴƻǿƭŜŘƎŜ ŀƴŘ ŀǇǇǊŜŎƛŀǘŜ ǘƘŜ ǇƭŀƴƴŜŘ ŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǿƛƭƭ ǘŀƪŜ ǇƭŀŎŜ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ ŦƛǎŎŀƭ ȅŜŀǊΣ WǳƴŜ 
олΣ нлноΣ ŀǎ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ ȅƻǳǊ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜΦ  

.ŜŎŀǳǎŜ ǘƘŜ ƳŜǘƘƻŘƻƭƻƎȅ ŦƻǊ ƻǳǊ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǎŀƳǇƭŜ ǘŜǎǘƛƴƎΣ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛǎ ƴƻǘ ŀ 
ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŀƭƭ ŀǊŜŀǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ƻǳǊ ǊŜǾƛŜǿΦ Lǘ ƛǎ ²5.{/Ωǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŀǘ 
ƛǘǎ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ ǎȅǎǘŜƳǎ ŎƻƳǇƭȅ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ²Lh! ŦŜŘŜǊŀƭ ŀƴŘ ǎǘŀǘŜ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀōƭŜ ǎǘŀǘŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƛǾŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ 
²5. ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΦ 

LŦ ȅƻǳ ƘŀǾŜ ŀƴȅ ǉǳŜǎǘƛƻƴǎΣ ŦŜŜƭ ŦǊŜŜ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǘŀŎǘ {ƻƴŀƳ wŀƧōƘŀƴŘŀǊȅΣ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ /ƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜ !ƴŀƭȅǎǘΣ 
²ƻǊƪŦƻǊŎŜ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ .ƻŀǊŘ ŀǘ ǎǊŀƧōƘŀƴŘŀǊȅϪǎƻƭŀƴƻǿŘōΦƻǊƎ ƻǊ ŀǘ тлтπусоπормлΦ  

{ƛƴŎŜǊŜƭȅΣ 

IŜŀǘƘŜǊ IŜƴǊȅ 
tǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘκ9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ 

11

mailto:srajbhandary@solanowdb.org




AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

SUBJECT 
Approval to Elect Vice Chair, Chris Churchill, to 
Serve as Board Chair the Duration of the Two-Year 
Term of Office through June 30, 2024 

MEETING DATE 
July 21, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 
VI.A

FROM 
Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 
YES       NO 

ATTACHMENTS 
NONE 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of the Ad-Hoc Nominations Committee that the Board considers and elects 
Vice Chair, Chris Churchill, to serve as the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County’s 
Board Chair for the remainder of the two-year term of office, to be effective immediately and expire 
June 30, 2024.  

WIOA legislation requires that the Chair seat be filled by a business representative.  

DISCUSSION 
At the May 19, 2023, Board Meeting, the WDB Chair, Fadi Halabi, announced his resignation as Board 
Chair. Mr. Churchill would serve as the interim Chair until an election was held. Mr. Halabi appointed 
the 2023 Ad-Hoc Nominations Committee that consisted of Mario Giuliani, Mark DeWeerdt, Melvinia 
King, and David Tam.  

On July 6, 2023, the Ad-Hoc Committee met via Zoom to select a Committee Chair and identify 
nominee(s) for Board Chair. Mark DeWeerdt, although not present at the meeting, was elected as 
Committee Chair. The committee identified Chris Churchill as the nominee for Board Chair. The 
committee requested staff to send an email to all members of the Board, asking if anyone was interested 
in serving as Chair and would like to be considered OR would like to nominate another Board member. 
Staff sent the email on July 10, 2023, requesting a response by July 13, 2023. One nomination was 
received however the nominated member did not meet the business category WIOA requirements. 

If the Board votes to elect Mr. Churchill as Board Chair, the Vice Chair seat will become vacant. 
Although not required by WIOA legislation, the WDB’s current Bylaws also require that the Vice Chair 
seat be filled by a business representative. The committee will need to meet again to nominate a 
member within the business category.  

ALTERNATIVES: Board members could choose to not accept the nominated officer; however, this 
would create the need to identify a new nominee(s) and vote accordingly.    

REPORT PREPARED BY: Tammy Gallentine, Executive & Board Support Specialist. 
Please contact Tammy at 707-863-3552 if you have any 
questions regarding the information outlined in this report. 

12



AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

SUBJECT 
Approval of New Workforce Board Appointment; 
Ms. Deanna Hurn of Miracle Math Coaching, as 
Business Representative 

MEETING DATE 
July 21, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 
VI.B

FROM 
Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 
YES      NO 

ATTACHMENTS 
A 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Board accept Ms. Deanna Hurn’s nomination for appointment to the 
Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County as Business Representative. 

Based on the Board’s action, this appointment will be forwarded to the Solano County Board of 
Supervisors (BOS) for their required formal ratification and final membership appointment. 

DISCUSSION 
Ms. Deanna Hurn – Miracle Math Coaching 
For more than a decade, Ms. Hurn has built a reputation as a leading voice in brain-based learning for 
K-12 education. As Founder and CEO of Miracle Math Coaching Brain-Based Learning Center, she 
has garnered nationwide praise for her revolutionary work. Ms. Hurn’s leadership and proven strategies 
landed her on the Top 100 Visionaries in Education list by the Global Forum for Education & Learning. 
The Fairfield Suisun Unified School District, the largest district in Solano County, California, ranked 
Miracle Math number one in its multiple highly qualified organizations roster. 

Ms. Hurn is a professional speaker, thought leader, proud MESA Alumni, and CEO and founder of the 
Miracle Math Coaching Brain-Based Learning Center in Fairfield, California. She combines 
neuroscience, psychology, mathematics, statistics, and cognitive science to help children and adult 
students exceed academic expectations. 

Ms. Hurn holds a teaching credential from the State of California, an Associate’s of Science degree in 
Mathematics from Sacramento City College, and a Bachelor of Science degree in Actuarial Statistics 
from the University of California at Santa Barbara.  

Before launching Miracle Math Coaching, she served as an actuary and financial analyst in the 
insurance industry. Her responsibilities included analyzing large data sets to make informed decisions 
about the future. Ms. Hurn is also the wife of her high school sweetheart, Marvin, and mother to their 
four beautiful daughters. 

After a technical review of the application documents, the appointment brought before the Board of 
Directors has been found to be in compliance with the regulatory requirements governing the Business 
Representative category for the Workforce Development membership appointment. 

Ms. Hurn’s term of office will be August 8, 2023, through August 7, 2027. 

13



Attached for review is a copy of Ms. Hurn’s Membership Application, Supplemental Application and 
Recommendation Letter. 

ALTERNATIVES 
Board members could choose to not approve the appointment brought before them, and a new search 
for a representative could ensue. However, Ms. Hurn’s appointment is considered to be an excellent 
candidate to serve in the business representative category on the WDB, and has been supported by Mr. 
Tim Murrill, Director of the Solano-Napa SBDC and endorsed by Mr. Neumayr, President/CEO of the 
Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of Commerce. 

AGENCY BUDGET IMPACT 
None 

REPORT PREPARED BY 
Tammy Gallentine, Executive & Board Support Specialist. Please contact Tammy at 707-863-3552 if 
you have any questions regarding the information outlined in this report. 

14



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thank you for your interest in serving as a member of the Workforce Development Board 
(WDB) of Solano County. Please complete this application as well as the supplemental 
application and return them to the WDB’s Corporate Affairs Unit located at 500 
Chandbourne Road, Suite A, Fairfield, CA 94534. 

Name: 

Company/Agency: 

Title: 

Business Address: 

Business Phone #: 

Business Fax #: 

Home or Cell Phone #: 

Email Address: 

County Supervisory District: 

Length of Residence/ 
Business in Solano County : Years: Months: 

Page 1 of 2 

15

ATTACHMENT A



Previous Commission or Committee Membership 

Commission/Committee 
Office Held 

(if applicable) 
Length of 

Participation 

Educational Background 

Institution Major 
Degree 

Yes 
No 

Year 

Work/Volunteer Experience 

Organization City/State Position Year 

Certification 

I certify that the information on this application and the attached application supplement is 
true and correct, and I authorize the verification of the information in the application in the 
event I am a finalist for membership appointment.  I understand that the information may be 
made public in accordance with Federal, State and local laws.  I further understand and 
agree, if appointed, to complete any and all required Conflict of Interest and/or Disclosure 
Statements required by law. 

Applicant Signature Date 

Page 2 of 2 

16

Deanna Hurn
7/12/23



SUPPLEMENTAL APPLICATION 

Name:  Date:  

I. Please provide the information requested below relating to the representative 
category of membership nomination you are seeking on the Workforce 
Development Board of Solano County. 

1.  Business (Private Sector/Non-Governmental)
2.  Community Based Organization
3.  Economic/Business Development Agency
4.  Education (Please check the appropriate box)

  Adult School   Community College 
5.  Governmental Entity
6.  Labor Organization
7.  State Certified Apprenticeship Program
8.  Wagner Peyser Program
9.  Title I Rehabilitation Act Program
10.  Youth Employment/Education Provider

II. If you checked box 1, please answer each of the following questions:

A. Name of Business:

B. Are you the Chief Executive or Owner?  Yes  No
C. Are you the Chief Operating Office?  Yes  No
D. Do you have substantial policy making or hiring authority?  Yes  No
E. Number of employees at the Solano Business?
F. Is the business minority-owned or operated?  Yes  No
G. Please check the box indicating which Chamber of Commerce is nominating

you. (Attach the nomination letter) 
 Benicia  Dixon   Vallejo 
 Fairfield/Suisun  Rio Vista  Vacaville 

III. If you checked box 2 through box 10, please complete the following:

A. Name of the organization which nominated you.  This organization may also
be your employer. (Attach the nomination letter) 

  Organization Name: 

B. Do you have optimum policy making authority with your organization, agency 
or entity?  Yes  No 

Applicant Signature Date 

17

Deanna Hurn
7/12/2023



18





AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

SUBJECT 
Reports 

MEETING DATE 
July 21, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 
VII.D

FROM 
Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 
YES       NO  

ATTACHMENTS 
A - C 

SUMMARY 
Staff has provided written updates on the following attached reports. Highlights will be summarized 
verbally. 

ATTACHMENT: 
• Attachment A: Compliance & Operational Reports – monitoring, personnel, and expenditures
• Attachment B: Programmatic Highlights
• Attachment C: Programmatic Performance Reports

o AJCC Service Summary
o Job Seeker Services Grant Metrics
o WIOA 3-Year Trends
o SBDC Service Report

19



Compliance and Operational Report 
• • • 

The Compliance and Operational Report provides an overview of monitoring and personnel 
updates occurring since the last board meeting. 

Monitoring Report 

This report updates the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County on the outcomes 
of the Federal, State, and County audit and monitoring reviews of the agency operations. Open 
and prior audit and monitoring reports are available on request. 

Definitions for the types of outcomes are:  
1) Finding is an instance of noncompliance with grant rules that must be resolved through

corrective action – findings that could lead to a disallowed cost will be noted as such; and
2) Concern is a condition that may become a compliance issue if not addressed.

Recent/Open Monitoring Activity: 
• Eide Bailly, contracted by the County of Solano, finalized the Single Audit for Fiscal Year

2021-22. The Audit included of the WDB’s program activities funded by WIOA. Eide Bailly
issued a final report with one finding:

Finding 1: Eide Bailly identified one (1) instance in which a required financial report was not
submitted, and one (1) instance in which amounts were incomplete/inaccurately reported. The
County did not have procedures in place over these reports to ensure that all required financial
reports were submitted and that financial reports were complete and accurate prior to
submission. No costs were identified as questioned. Eide Bailly recommends that the County
review its policies and procedures with regards to the preparation and submission of reports.

WDB Response: Management agrees with the finding. The WDB had transition of fiscal 
directors in FY2021-22. As a result, the fiscal director at the time of the reports in question 
was not fully aware of the fiscal reporting requirements. However, this has been addressed 
and a new procedure for fiscal reporting in the state’s system has been established. This 
new procedure has been in effect since July 1, 2022. 

• The State of California Employment Development Department (EDD) Compliance Review
Unit conducted a desk review of the WDB’s Equal Employment Opportunities (EEO)
activities funded by WIOA in November 2021. EDD issued a final report on June 24, 2022,
and determined two findings:

Finding 1: Upon reviewing participant files, EEO Specialist identified that disability and
medical related information was being collected and stored together. EDD recommends the
WDB collect and store Equal Opportunity Questionnaires separately from the participant files;
review all forms and assessments to ensure questions about disability and medical questions
are on a separate sheet; redact disability and medical information from participant files; and

20



store files with disability and medical information separately. 

WDB Response: While the current practice is to maintain disability and medical-related 
information in a separate file, staff will review all participant files to ensure that such a 
practice is consistently adhered to. A follow-up on file reviews previously conducted will 
continue until all active and exited files are thoroughly reviewed and corrected. WDBSC plans 
for this action to be completed no later than June 30th, 2022. 

EDD accepted the WDB’s corrective action plan. However, the finding cannot be closed 
until a future on-site visit verifies successful implementation of the corrective action. 

Personnel Report 

The Personnel Report provides the Board with information regarding recruitments, promotions, 
and departures of WDB employees. Below are the staffing changes during the reporting period: 

Terminations: Jelilah Winters (Voluntary Termination) 
Effective Date: July 20, 2023 
Classification: Administrative / Program Specialist II 
Position: Employability Specialist 

Linden Samson (Voluntary Termination) 
Effective Date: June 28, 2023 
Classification: Administrative / Program Technician III 
Position: Program Assistant III 

Barbara Gilbert (Retired) 
Effective Date: June 27, 2023 
Classification: Administrative / Program Specialist I 
Position: SBDC Support Specialist  

Pamela Clemmons (Lay Off due to Bumping) 
Effective Date: June 20, 2023 
Classification: Administrative / Program Technician III 
Position: Program Assistant III 

Expenditure Report 
This is the Workforce Development Board of Solano County’s (WDB) report of expenditures for 
the 2022-23 program year, through May 31, 2023. With 91.7% of the program year elapsed, the 
expenditures compared to the plan equal 63.7%.   

Attachment A contains the expenditure report; the report format shows the funding and 
expenditure information from two viewpoints. The top contains grant funding vs. grant 
expenditures. The bottom contains line-item budget vs. line-item expenditures. 

21



Significant Revenue Discrepancies: 

• WIOA Dislocated Worker funds are under expended to date due to low enrollments. Funds
will be able to be carried into FY2023-24.

• WIOA Youth funds are under expended to date. Youth contract invoicing is currently
behind schedule. In addition, funds are set aside for an additional youth contract with
Voices, which began June 1, 2023. Remaining funds will be able to be carried into FY2023-
24. Staff are watching to ensure that Work Experience requirements are met for FY2022-
23.  

• WIOA Rapid Response and Layoff Aversion are under expended to date. The state has
given an extension of the funds through September 30, 2023.

• EDD – COVID National Dislocated Worker Grant (NDWG) completed on March 31, 2023
under expended due to low enrollment numbers. 

• CWDB – CNA Upskilling Program is slightly under expended in the report. Programmatic
contract invoicing is slightly behind schedule, but expenditures in general are on track.

• CWDB – Regional Plan Implementation 5.0 funding was delayed due to the state
contracting process. Expenditures will begin June 2023.

• City of Vacaville – Manufacturing Retention and Shop Local are slightly overexpended,
which will be corrected in June’s financials. 

• City of Vallejo – ARPA Small Business Assistance is near completion of activities. All
microgrants have been disseminated. The Restaurant Resiliency program is near
completion and this grant is anticipated to be fully expended prior to June 30, 2023.

• City of Napa – Leaf Blower is a new grant received under Napa City’s ARPA funding to
provide a rebate program for Napa’s landscaping companies.

• County of Napa – Childcare Loan Assistance is a new grant received under Napa County’s
ARPA funding to provide business assistance to childcare providers in securing loans.

• County of Napa – Microbusiness Grants was completed December 31, 2022. The grant
closed with 93% of funds expended. 

• County of Solano – ARPA Grants are under expended to date. A number of factors
influence current low expenditures, including delayed contract negotiations. Community
Workforce Grants began service delivery February 2023. All projects except Sustain
Service Delivery are multi-year grants and can be carried into FY2023-24.

• County of Solano – Microbusiness Grants are under expended as of May 31, 2023.
However, staff finalized a number of additional grants in the early part of June before the
grant closed, which will be reflected in June’s financials.

• CWDB / Sonoma WIB – Regional Implementation 4.0 was completed December 31, 2022.
WDB expenditures were fully expended, but the Regional Organizer contract was
underspent at the close of the contract.

• CWDB – Regional Plan Implementation 5.0 funding was delayed due to the state
contracting process. Expenditures will begin July 2023.

• CWDB – Regional Equity began in spring 2023. Remaining funds for the year will be
carried into FY2023-24. 

22



• Restaurant Resiliency – This grant received additional funding in spring 2023 and is on
track to be finalized in August 2023.

• H&SS Job Skills Program is currently over expended due to high expenditure rates in the
first quarter of the fiscal year. Expenditures will end within budget.

• SBDC Funds include the Capital Improvement Program (which started in October 2022),
the Small Business Administration (SBA), and the Technical Assistance Program (TAP),
SBDC Local Match, and SBDC Donations and Sponsorships. Expenditures are spread
across the three programs and will even out by the end of the Fiscal Year. SBDC Program
Income and Donations are planned, but not required, to be spent this fiscal year. All
remaining funds can be carried into FY2023-24.

• WellsFargo – Dream Incubator started in the fall of 2022. Expenditures are track and will
be finalized in fall 2023. 

Significant Expenditure Discrepancies: 

• Vocational Training and Work-Based Training expenditures are significantly underspent
due to low enrollments. Enrollments have been increasing and expenditures will increase
but will not be fully spent this fiscal year. Remaining training funds will be carried into the
next fiscal year.

• Small Business Payments include microgrant payments and nonprofit infrastructure grants.
The majority of the microgrant payments are currently being finalized and the nonprofit
infrastructure grants are planned for the spring of 2023. Any remaining funding can be
carried into FY2023-24.

• Outreach is currently under expended. These expenditures include outreach and career
awareness contracts that are intended to begin in spring 2023. Any remaining funding can
be carried into FY2023-24.

• Program Contracts include WIOA contracts that are generally on target, as well as ARPA
contracts that had delayed invoicing in spring 2023. ARPA contracts consist of a significant
piece of this line item. Any remaining funds can be carried into FY2023-24.

• Employee / WDB Development is currently under expended; however, conference
attendance and trainings occurred in May, which will be reflected in June’s report.

• Supplies / Equipment / Software include a significant cost to improve the technology
hardware in the Vallejo AJCC. This project has been delayed. Any remaining funds can be
carried into FY2023-24.

• Other Operating Costs are over expended due to higher than anticipated County
administration fees, including fees for the WDB’s participation in the County audit. Staff
are currently evaluating options for addressing the overage.

23



WDB SOLANO

C¸нлннπно 9ȄǇŜƴŘƛǘǳǊŜ wŜǇƻǊǘ π ŀǎ ƻŦ aŀȅ омΣ нлно

BUDGET
2022-23 Mod 2

% of 
Budget

May '23
Actuals

% 
Expended

Approv. 3/23 91.7%
REVENUE:
State Grant Revenue

 WIOA Adult $985,378 11.6% $817,107 82.9%
 WIOA Dislocated Worker 1,004,645          11.8% 728,887        72.6%
 WIOA Youth 1,110,144          13.0% 688,293        62.0%
 WIOA Rapid Response 176,459 2.1% 120,427        68.2%
 WIOA Layoff Aversion 49,046 0.6% 37,509          76.5%
 EDD - COVID National Dislocated Worker Grant (NDWG) 68,290 0.8% 42,911          62.8%
 CWDB - CNA Upskilling Program 165,296 1.9% 117,472        71.1%
 CWDB - Regional Plan Implementation 5.0 17,188 0.2% - 0.0%
 Grant Revenue Total $3,576,446 42.0% $2,552,606 71.4%

Other Government Grants/Contracts

 City of Napa - Leaf Blower $0 $0 $272 0
 City of Vacaville - Manufacturing Retention $13,399 0.2% $13,688 102.2%
 City of Vacaville - Shop Local 9,068 0.1% 9,527 105.1%
 City of Vallejo - ARPA Small Business Assistance 596,260 7.0% 582,526        97.7%
 County of Napa - Childcare Loan Assistance - 0.0% 1,308 0
 County of Napa - Microbusiness Grants 167,773 2.0% 156,159        93.1%
 County of Solano - ARPA 1: Sustain Service Delivery 715,961 8.4% 334,762        46.8%
 County of Solano - ARPA 2: Community Workforce 481,234 5.7% 181,422        37.7%
 County of Solano - ARPA 3: Industry Training 648,658 7.6% 216,585        33.4%
 County of Solano - ARPA 4: Community Engagement 233,313 2.7% 116,312        49.9%
 County of Solano - ARPA SB1: Small Business TA 171,890 2.0% 32,955          19.2%
 County of Solano - ARPA SB2: Business Incubator 272,650 3.2% 216,336        79.3%
 County of Solano - ARPA SB3: Services for Businesses 110,200 1.3% 18,260          16.6%
 County of Solano - Microbusiness Grants 525,379 6.2% 375,051        71.4%
 CWDB - Prison to Employment 2.0 18,768 0.2% - 0.0%
 CWDB - Regional Equity 125,471 1.5% 25,650          20.4%
 CWDB / Sonoma WIB - Regional Implementation 4.0 39,714 0.5% 39,740          100.1%
 FSUSD - Restaurant Resiliency 49,665 0.6% 22,953          46.2%
 H&SS - Job Skills Program 250,000 2.9% 249,719        99.9%
 H&SS - Success Track 86,558 1.0% 86,657          100.1%
 NorCal SBDC - Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 31,338 0.4% 25,830          82.4%
 NorCal SBDC - Small Business Administration (SBA) 199,855 2.3% 168,034        84.1%
 NorCal SBDC - Technical Assistance Program (TAP) 60,972 0.7% 66,295          108.7%
 SBDC Local Match 52,590 0.6% 45,737          87.0%
 Other Government Revenue Total $4,860,716 57.1% $2,985,779 61.4%

$0

24

ATTACHMENT A



BUDGET
2022-23 Mod 2

% of 
Budget

May '23
Actuals

% 
Expended

Approv. 3/23 91.7%
Other Revenue

 Kaiser - Restaurant Resiliency $2,250 0.0% $3,000 133.3%
 Napa Valley College $8,000 0.1% 4,682 58.5%
 SBDC Program Income $10,000 0.1% 6,042 60.4%
 WellsFargo - Dream Incubator $50,000 0.6% 31,043          62.1%
 Other Revenue Total $70,250 0.8% $44,767 63.7%

Donations and Contributions

 SBDC Donations and Sponsorships $9,953 0.1% $1,619 16.3%
 Donations and Contributions Total $9,953 0.1% $1,619 16.3%

 TOTAL REVENUE $8,517,366 100% $5,584,771 65.6%

EXPENSES:

 Salaries and Benefits $3,430,209 40.3% $2,816,242 82.1%
 Personnel Expenses $3,430,209 40.3% $2,816,242 82.1%

0.0%
 Vocational Training $715,120 8.4% $107,835 15.1%
 Work-Based Training $202,134 2.4% 60,636          30.0%
 Supportive Services $28,590 0.3% 23,198          81.1%
 Business Advisors $313,892 3.7% 292,327        93.1%
 Small Business Grants / Payments $1,714,480 20.1% 1,097,250     64.0%
 Outreach $98,037 1.2% 12,207          12.5%
 Program Contracts $1,062,393 12.5% 421,637        39.7%
 Direct Program Costs $4,134,645 48.5% $2,015,090 48.7%

0.0%
 Communications / IT $127,281 1.5% $104,653 82.2%
 Employee / WDB Professional Dev $15,868 0.2% 8,052 50.7%
 Facilities $544,872 6.4% 421,449        77.3%
 Memberships $17,140 0.2% 10,975          64.0%
 Mileage / Travel $11,483 0.1% 9,047 78.8%
 Supplies / Equipment / Software $121,057 1.4% 63,263          52.3%
 Other Operating Costs $114,809 1.3% 136,001        118.5%
 Other Costs $952,509 11.2% $753,440 79.1%

  TOTAL EXPENSES $8,517,363 100% $5,584,771 65.6%

Revenue Over / (Under) Expenses $0

25



Programmatic Highlights 
• • • 

The Programmatic Highlights Report provides a narrative of key activities for America’s Job 
Center of CA (AJCC) activities; Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Adult, 
Dislocated Worker, Youth, and Rapid Response Grants; CalWORKS Pathway to Success contract; 
discretionary grants; and the Solano Small Business Development Center (SBDC) occurring since 
the last board meeting. 

America’s Job Center of California (AJCC)  

This report updates the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County on the activities 
conducted at the America’s Job Center of California (AJCC) and other community locations. This 
report is for the period of January to February 2023. 

Reporting period highlights include: 
• AJCC participates in Regional Outreach – Through collaboration with Job Corps (Treasure

Island), AJCC staff was connected to a virtual IT training program for young adults in the
San Francisco Bay Area called Year Up Bay Area.  This program is based in San Francisco
and offers a year of virtual learning, internships, and opportunity to interact with major
corporations that hire graduates. AJCC staff volunteered as Interview Judge for those about
to complete their programs. There were two (2) cohorts and staff interviewed 6 students, 3
per session.

• CPR, First Aid, and AED instruction – In June, the AJCC hosted 2 sessions of CPR
instruction that were designed to provide opportunity for WDB and partner staff as well as
the general public at no cost.  The instructor was provided through the Teamsters Training
Trust Fund and operates a number of OSHA safety classes in California, and across the
nation.  Six (6) WDB staff members took part in these sessions including young family
members, strengthening AJCC principles of safety and preparedness to families and
customers of the Solano County area.  More classes are being planned for the fall and
winter of 2023 and 2024, dates to be determined.

WIOA Programs 

The Workforce Services Division is responsible for outreach and recruitment, assessment, 
enrollment and exit of eligible WIOA Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth participants. A 
significant percentage of the organization’s participants participate in WIOA programs. Reporting 
period highlights are below. 

26



Job Seeker Services: 
• Youth Program – The WDB and First Place for Youth (FPFY) team continue to serve

qualified youth participants. During the month of June, the following major activities,
achievements, and successes took place: First Place for Youth conducted the first-ever
cohort of CVS Pre-Apprentices, added additional enrollees, and continued supportive
services to all participants.

Partnering with CVS and Thryve Program Instructors, FPFY conducted the work 
experience Pharmacy Technician Pre-Apprenticeship Program. Youth engaged in a 5-
week Pre-Apprenticeship, hosted by Employer Partner, CVS. This training provided 
coursework including in-depth understanding of the roles, responsibilities, and workflows 
at each of the five Pharmacy workstations. Participants received first-hand experience 
with the tools needed to manage the workflows and were able to identify the steps involved 
for each workstation interaction. “Mock Pharmacy” practice sessions along with role-
plays for each module ensure exceptional customer service and patient safety. Youth's 
hours also count towards larger license requirements of Certified Pharmacy Technician. 
Youth were paid for their time and five (5) youth graduated their coursework while 
accomplishing measurable skills gains. FPFY are currently supporting those individuals 
to finish their worksite applications and get ready to start in the assigned stores for 
additional information and exposure to the Pharmacy Industry. 

Business Services: 
• Solano Micro Business COVID-19 Relief Grant – Solano County partnered with the WDB

Business Services and the Solano-Napa Small Business Development Center (SBDC) to
administer the MBCRG in Solano County.

WDB staff successfully completed the grant on June 16, 2023, and was able to award 179
grants. This totals $447,500 in grant funding received by Solano County micro businesses.

Discretionary Grants 

The WDB currently implements the following discretionary grant programs for job seekers:  
• CNA Upskilling Program (funded by California Workforce Development Board’s

Accelerator 10.0)
• Pathway to Success (funded by Solano County Department of Health and Social Services)

Reporting period highlights include: 
• CNA Upskilling Program –During the reporting period, staff worked with Paradise Valley

Estates to enroll ten (10) incumbent Certified Nursing Assistants (CNA) for the CNA 
Certified Preceptor microcredential developed as part of the project. Employees will begin 
their training in July 2023.  

27



• Pathway to Success – Health & Social Services (H&SS) Pathway to Employment contract
ended June 30, 2023. WDB staff are currently reviewing completed case files for
destruction of those that are beyond the three-years retention period. To date, fifteen boxes
of files have been destroyed under our current retention protocol. All remaining case files,
approximately five boxes, will be returned to HSS for final review and transfer to H&SS
staff for continual job-readiness training and job placement. Also, of note for this period,
is the discussion among our respective organizations to begin a referral process for job-
ready clients to receive WIOA specific services to obtain vocational training and
individualized employment objectives.

ARPA Grants 
The WDB and SBDC collectively implements seventeen (17) projects across seven (7) contracts 
under the American Rescue Plan Act to benefit both job seekers and small businesses on behalf of 
the County of Solano:  

• Sustain / Extend Current Services – WDB Staffing, WDB Training, SBDC Business
Advising

• Community Workforce Services – Community Workforce Grants, Technical Assistance
and Infrastructure Grants for Nonprofits

• Industry-Based Job Training
• Expanding Community Engagement – Community Engagement and Job Readiness,

Virtual Service Tools, Vallejo Job Center Improvements, Employer Resource Network
• Small Business Advising – Expanded SBDC Advising, Culturally Competent Advising,

Business Peer Advisory Groups
• Business Incubator – Incubator Trainings, Microgrants
• Services for Businesses – Business Training Series, Business Translation Services Pilot,

Work-Based Mental Health Services

Reporting period highlights include: 
• Sustain / Expand Current Services – During the reporting period, activities and

expenditures continued to propel forward. Staff enrolled over 80 individuals into ARPA 1a 
by June 30, 2023. The training portion of the contract has had a much slower start. As such, 
the County has extended the term of the agreement to September 30, 2024. SBDC business 
advising has been completed under this contract. 

• Industry-Based Job Training – Activities in each of the identified industries and projects
have commenced for this ARPA contract. Current project progress includes:

o Hospitality – The WDB has hosted five (5) Food Manager Certificate Workshops
to date. Sixty-nine (69) individuals attended the workshops and sixty-three (63)
individuals have passed the exam and earned the Food Manager Certificate. We
have offered one workshop in Spanish and are scheduling three more workshops in

28



August with one of those being Spanish. Sixty-two (62) participants are currently 
working in the Accommodations & Food Services Industry. 

Feedback from employers has been very positive with comments such as “my 
business became much more professional overnight,” and “the cost savings were 
important as we are a new business and could afford to send multiple staff.” Two 
participants have reported that the certificate “got me the job” and another reported 
that the certification “helped get them a promotion.” 

o Climate Transition –The Climate Transition Summer Youth Program has started.
On July 5th, 2023, eleven young people reported to orientation and at the time of
this writing, the crew has already worked at Brannen Island and the Fairfield-Suisun
Water District. One youth member is awaiting a Cal ID Card, which will allow her
to start, filling the 12th slot on the crew.

 Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 
The WDB is the host for the Solano Small Business Development Center (SBDC). Services for 
small businesses include one-on-one business advising through expert consultants and seminars 
and events for small businesses throughout the county. 

Reporting period highlights include: 
• ARPA Solano Success Accelerator Program – SBDC completed has now completed three

(w) Accelerator programs with 17 graduates who got help with refining their business plan 
and growth strategies.  

• ARPA Culturally Competent Technical Assistance – SBDC completed the RFP process,
awarding $210,000 to organizations who provide support to business owners who are
ethnically diverse. Staff made awards to two agencies: the California Hispanic Chamber
and the Black Chamber of Solano County. Both have begun outreach efforts, have
developed curriculum, and provided advising for 17 minority businesses

• Napa Childcare Forgivable Loan Program – The SBDC has received funding from Napa
County to provide support for their ARPA funded applicants who apply for the Forgivable
Childcare program offering $250,000 - $1,000,000 to purchase or expand facilities or
homes for childcare providers. SBDC has provided support to childcare applicants; seven
(7) to date have received forgivable loans totaling $4 million.

• City of Napa Leaf Blower Program – SBDC received funding from the City of Napa to
administer a Leaf Blower grant. This grant provides up to $1,000 for purchasing electric
commercial grade leaf blowers and other landscaping power tools.  This grant will ease the
financial impact of complying with a CA law that goes into effect next year banning the
sale of gas powered landscaping equipment.

29



So
la

n
o

 A
m

e
ri

ca
's

 J
o

b
 C

e
n

te
r 

o
f 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

FY
 2

0
2

2
-2

3
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
u

m
m

ar
y

Ju
ly

 2
0

2
2

 -
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
2

3

C
u

st
o

m
er

 T
ra

ff
ic

 b
y 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
Ju

ly
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
To

ta
l

Ju
l-

Ju
n

e

FY
2

1
-2

2

±ŀ
ƭƭŜ
Ƨƻ
 !
W/
/ 
ό±
ƛǊǘ
ǳŀ

ƭƭȅ
 ŀ
ƴŘ

 ƛƴ
 Ǉ
ŜǊ
ǎƻ
ƴύ

оф
п

см
ф

по
т

рн
о

сл
т

рс
л

ут
п

рм
о

рс
н

рр
н

рп
л

рл
с

6
,6

8
7

3
,9

2
4

Cŀ
ƛǊŦ
ƛŜ
ƭŘ
 !
W/
/

рп
с

со
р

рл
п

ру
н

тм
у

ро
с

тн
м

рп
т

сл
т

ро
р

ул
с

сп
н

7
,3

7
9

1
0

,9
3

5

To
ta

l R
o

ad
 t

o
 E

m
p

lo
ym

en
t 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

*
мп

мл
мн

мф
мр

мт
нр

оф
уо

ру
ом

мф
3

4
2

1
8

4

±ŀ
Ŏŀ
Ǿƛ
ƭƭŜ
 [
ƛō
Ǌŀ
Ǌȅ
 w
ƻŀ

Ř 
ǘƻ
 9
Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

Ƴ
Ŝƴ

ǘ
с

п
у

ф
р

ф
т

мт
мт

о
ф

у
1

0
2

5
4

±ŀ
ƭƭŜ
Ƨƻ
 WC

Y 
wƻ

ŀŘ
 ǘƻ

 9
Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

Ƴ
Ŝƴ

ǘ
с

о
м

р
п

н
о

у
о

м
р

т
4

8
2

8

±ŀ
ƭƭŜ
Ƨƻ
 {
ǇǊ
ƛƴ
Ǝǎ
ǘƻ
ǿ
ƴŜ

 w
ƻŀ

Ř 
ǘƻ
 9
Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

Ƴ
Ŝƴ

ǘ
н

о
м

р
п

п
с

с
о

м
н

о
4

0
3

1

±ŀ
ƭƭŜ
Ƨƻ
 I
Ŝŀ

ƭǘƘ
 ϧ
 {
ƻŎ
ƛŀ
ƭ {
ŜǊ
Ǿƛ
ŎŜ
ǎ

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

0
--

±ŀ
ƭƭŜ
Ƨƻ
 C
ƛǊǎ
ǘ р

 /
Ŝƴ

ǘŜ
Ǌ

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

0
--

Cŀ
ƛǊŦ
ƛŜ
ƭŘ
 {
ǳƛ
ǎǳ
ƴ 
!Ř

ǳƭ
ǘ {

ŎƘ
ƻƻ

ƭ 
л

л
н

л
н

н
ф

у
сл

ро
мр

м
1

5
2

7
1

¢ƻ
ǘŀ
ƭ

9
5

4
1

,2
6

4
9

5
3

1
,1

2
4

1
,3

4
0

1
,1

1
3

1
,6

2
0

1
,0

9
9

1
,2

5
2

1
,1

4
5

1
,3

7
7

1
,1

6
7

1
4

,4
0

8
1

5
,0

4
3

C
al

JO
B

S 
St

at
is

ti
cs

Ju
ly

A
u

g
Se

p
O

ct
N

o
v

D
e

c
Ja

n
Fe

b
M

ar
A

p
r

M
ay

Ju
n

To
ta

l
FY

2
1

-2
2

b
Ŝǿ

 Lƴ
Řƛ
Ǿƛ
Řǳ

ŀƭ
ǎ ǘ
Ƙŀ

ǘ w
ŜƎ
ƛǎǘ
ŜǊ
ŜŘ

но
л

см
п

оу
р

пт
т

сн
п

сл
р

мΣ
ло

т
со

ф
сф

м
ср

т
тм

о
сс

у
7

,3
4

0
7

,9
1

9

¦
ƴƛ
ǉǳ

Ŝ 
Lƴ
Řƛ
Ǿƛ
Řǳ

ŀƭ
ǎ w

ŜŎ
Ŝƛ
Ǿƛ
ƴƎ

 {
ŜǊ
Ǿƛ
ŎŜ
ǎ

рл
м

ун
у

тф
л

ун
у

фт
л

ум
р

мΣ
ол

о
мΣ
лф

м
мΣ
лт

н
мΣ
ло

о
мΣ
лл

с
то

с
!ƭ
ƭ {
ŜǊ
Ǿƛ
ŎŜ
ǎ t

Ǌƻ
Ǿƛ
ŘŜ

Ř 
ǘƻ
 Lƴ

Řƛ
Ǿƛ
Řǳ

ŀƭ
ǎ

мΣ
нф

п
нΣ
но

о
мΣ
фп

т
нΣ
мп

м
нΣ
су

л
нΣ
нр

п
оΣ
фн

т
оΣ
нф

р
оΣ
мл

л
оΣ
лр

р
оΣ
пл

л
нΣ
рп

м

K
e

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
 P

ro
vi

d
ed

Ju
ly

A
u

g
Se

p
O

ct
N

o
v

D
e

c
Ja

n
Fe

b
M

ar
A

p
r

M
ay

Ju
n

To
ta

l
FY

2
1

-2
2

!W
//

 ²
Ŝƭ
Ŏƻ
Ƴ
Ŝ 
όh
ǊƛŜ

ƴǘ
ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴύ

л
л

мн
мс

но
мт

ос
рм

от
пф

оф
пт

3
2

7
0

¸ƻ
ǳǘ
Ƙ 
h
ǊƛŜ

ƴǘ
ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴǎ
 ό!

W/
/ύ
 ²

Ŝƭ
Ŏƻ
Ƴ
Ŝ

л
л

м
н

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

3
0

Lƴ
ǘǊ
ƻ 
ǘƻ
 Wƻ

ō 
/ƻ

ƴƴ
ŜŎ
ǘ ϧ

 /
ŀǊ
ŜŜ

Ǌ ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝ 

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

0
0

tŀ
Ǌƻ
ƭŜ
 ŀ
ƴŘ

 /
ƻƳ

Ƴ
ǳƴ

ƛǘȅ
 ¢
Ŝŀ

Ƴ
 όt

!/
¢ύ
 *

*
л

мн
мо

мм
мп

мр
с

мм
мм

мм
мм

мн
1

2
7

1
7

5

²
ƻǊ
ƪƛ
ƴƎ

 /
! 
π ¢

!C
.

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ 

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

0
0

95
5 
ϧ
 ¦
L ²

ƻǊ
ƪǎ
Ƙƻ

Ǉǎ
 όǾ

ƛǊǘ
ǳŀ

ƭύ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
0

7
2

7

!W
//

 π 
²
ƻǊ
ƪǎ
Ƙƻ

Ǉǎ
 όǾ

ƛǊǘ
ǳŀ

ƭύ
л

л
т

л
н

мо
т

л
п

н
у

н
4

5
4

2

/ŀ
ǊŜ
ŜǊ
 !
ŘǾ

ŀƴ
ǘŀ
ƎŜ
 {
Ŝǎ
ǎƛƻ

ƴǎ
 π 
όǾ
ƛǊǘ
ǳŀ

ƭύ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
0

--

±Ŝ
ǘŜ
Ǌŀ
ƴǎ
 b
Ŝǘ
ǿ
ƻǊ
ƪ 
π C

ŀƛ
ǊŦ
ƛŜ
ƭŘ
 όh

ƴ 
{ƛ
ǘŜ
ύ

мп
мп

л
мп

но
мп

мм
мм

мф
мс

мп
мо

1
6

3
1

5
5

/!
{!

{ 
{ƪ
ƛƭƭ
ǎ ¢

Ŝǎ
ǘƛƴ

Ǝ
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

у
8

1
¢ȅ
Ǉƛ
ƴƎ

 ¢
Ŝǎ
ǘǎ
 π 
Cŀ
ƛǊŦ
ƛŜ
ƭŘ
 όh

ƴ 
{ƛ
ǘŜ
ύ

мм
мт

п
мл

мл
р

т
у

р
мл

мр
ф

1
1

1
1

3
6

.ŀ
ǎƛŎ

 /
ƻƳ

Ǉǳ
ǘŜ
Ǌ {

ƪƛ
ƭƭǎ
 /
ƭŀ
ǎǎ
Ŝǎ
 

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

ππ
ππ

0
2

Sp
ec

ia
l E

ve
n

ts
: C

P
R

 c
la

ss
es

о
нс

мо
но

мн
у

оп
т

нт
ол

л
нл

2
0

3
7

7

*C
o

m
b

in
e

d
  T

o
ta

l:
2

8
6

9
5

0
7

6
8

4
7

2
1

0
1

8
8

1
0

3
1

1
8

8
7

1
1

1
9

8
7

1
,3

1
5

**
 in

 p
e

rs
o

n
 a

s 
o

f 
O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2

30

ATTACHMENT C-1



мл
л҈

W
IO

A
 A

d
u

lt
G

o
al

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

ct
o

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r
Ja

n
u

ar
y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Y

TD
O

n
 T

ar
ge

t

!Ǉ
Ǉƭ
ƛŎ
ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴǎ

6
0

л
н

л
мл

о
м

у
п

мл
с

мн
ф

ср
мл

у҈
b
Ŝǿ

ƭȅ
 9
ƴǊ
ƻƭ
ƭŜ
Ř

3
5

т
р

о
п

н
р

мн
мм

мл
т

мл
мт

фо
нс

с҈
h
ŎŎ
ǳǇ

ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴŀ

ƭ ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝ

1
4

л
м

л
м

о
м

т
п

л
н

н
м

нн
мр

т҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜǊ
π.
ŀǎ
ŜŘ

7
л

л
л

м
м

м
н

л
л

л
л

л
р

тм
҈

/Ǌ
ŜŘ

Ŝƴ
ǘƛŀ

ƭǎ
1

0
м

н
л

л
л

о
п

м
у

о
н

м
нр

нр
л҈

a
{D

1
2

м
н

м
о

о
п

т
р

о
м

н
л

он
нс

т҈
9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Ř
2

0
р

ф
у

мм
т

о
р

о
о

мо
мо

р
ур

пн
р҈

9Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘ

1
7

р
о

р
п

о
л

м
м

н
р

о
н

оп
нл

л҈
a
ŜŘ

ƛŀ
ƴ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ

2
7

.0
0

$
   

  
нм

Φл
л

Ϸ 
   

нл
Φм
ф

Ϸ 
   

нр
Φл
л

Ϸ 
 

   
ол

Φл
т

Ϸ 
   
   

нр
Φл
л

Ϸ 
 

   
π

нр
Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
  

нм
Φл
л

Ϸ 
 
   

оп
Φр
л

Ϸ 
   
 

нр
Φр
л

Ϸ 
   
 

нм
Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
 

но
Φм
о

Ϸ 
   
 

нр
Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
 

фо
҈

W
IO

A
 D

W
G

o
al

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

ct
o

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r
Ja

n
u

ar
y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Y

TD
O

n
 T

ar
ge

t

!Ǉ
Ǉƭ
ƛŎ
ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴǎ

1
1

0
л

л
л

м
м

м
о

н
л

о
т

о
нм

мф
҈

b
Ŝǿ

ƭȅ
 9
ƴǊ
ƻƭ
ƭŜ
Ř

8
0

м
м

л
м

м
о

л
с

о
о

р
с

ол
оу

҈
h
ŎŎ
ǳǇ

ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴŀ

ƭ ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝ

3
1

л
л

л
м

л
л

м
л

н
м

п
м

мл
он

҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜǊ
π.
ŀǎ
ŜŘ

8
м

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
м

л
н

нр
҈

/Ǌ
ŜŘ

Ŝƴ
ǘƛŀ

ƭǎ
1

0
н

л
л

л
м

н
л

л
л

п
л

л
ф

фл
҈

a
{D

2
3

л
н

л
о

л
л

м
м

м
о

м
о

мр
ср

҈
9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Ř
6

5
м

т
ф

ф
м

м
м

н
м

р
р

о
пр

сф
҈

9Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘ

5
5

л
о

н
п

л
л

л
н

м
н

н
п

нл
ос

҈
a
ŜŘ

ƛŀ
ƴ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ

3
4

.0
0

$
   

  
π

оо
Φм
т

Ϸ 
   

нп
Φр
н

Ϸ 
 

   
он

Φу
л

Ϸ 
   
   

π
π

π
ол

Φр
л

Ϸ 
 
   

нн
Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
 

нп
Φт
р

Ϸ 
   
 

оо
Φр
л

Ϸ 
   
 

но
Φм
о

Ϸ 
   
 

нт
Φс
о

Ϸ 
   
 

ум
҈

W
IO

A
 A

d
u

lt
/D

W
G

o
al

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

ct
o

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r
Ja

n
u

ar
y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Y

TD
O

n
 T

ar
ge

t

!Ǉ
Ǉƭ
ƛŎ
ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴǎ
ϝ

1
7

0
л

н
л

мм
п

н
мм

с
мл

ф
мф

мн
ус

рм
҈

b
Ŝǿ

ƭȅ
 9
ƴǊ
ƻƭ
ƭŜ
Řϝ

1
1

5
у

с
о

р
о

у
мн

мт
мо

мл
мр

но
мн

о
мл

т҈
h
ŎŎ
ǳǇ

ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴŀ

ƭ ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝϝ

4
5

л
м

л
н

о
м

у
п

н
о

с
н

он
тм

҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜǊ
π.
ŀǎ
ŜŘ

ϝ
1

5
м

л
л

м
м

м
н

л
л

л
м

л
т

пт
҈

/Ǌ
ŜŘ

Ŝƴ
ǘƛŀ

ƭǎϝ
2

0
о

н
л

л
м

р
п

м
у

т
н

м
оп

мт
л҈

a
{D

ϝ
3

5
м

п
м

с
о

п
у

с
п

п
о

о
пт

мо
п҈

9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Řϝ
8

5
с

мс
мт

нл
у

п
с

р
п

му
му

у
мо

л
мр

о҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘϝ

7
2

р
с

т
у

о
л

м
о

о
т

р
с

рп
тр

҈
!Ǿ

ŜǊ
ŀƎ
Ŝ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ 
ϝ

3
1

.0
0

$
   

  
нм

Φл
л

Ϸ 
   

нс
Φс
у

Ϸ 
   

нп
Φт
с

Ϸ 
 

   
ом

Φп
п

Ϸ 
   
   

нр
Φл
л

Ϸ 
 

   
π

нр
Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
  

нр
Φт
р

Ϸ 
 
   

ну
Φн
р

Ϸ 
   
 

нр
Φм
о

Ϸ 
   
 

нт
Φн
р

Ϸ 
   
 

но
Φм
о

Ϸ 
   
 

нр
Φт
с

Ϸ 
   
 

уо
҈

ϝ 
a
ŀȅ
 ǊŜ

ǇǊ
Ŝǎ
Ŝƴ

ǘ Ŏ
ƻπ
Ŝƴ

Ǌƻ
ƭƭŜ
Ř 
Ǉŀ

Ǌǘ
ƛŎ
ƛǇ
ŀƴ

ǘ

W
IO

A
 Y

o
u

th
G

o
al

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

ct
o

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r
Ja

n
u

ar
y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
¸¢

5
O

n
 T

ar
ge

t

!Ǉ
Ǉƭ
ƛŎ
ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴ

8
0

н
л

л
л

н
о

л
н

н
п

с
р

нс
оо

҈
9ƴ

Ǌƻ
ƭƭŜ
Ř

2
5

с
л

л
л

о
н

м
л

п
о

п
с

нф
мм

с҈
h
ŎŎ
ǳǇ

ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴŀ

ƭ ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝ

0
л

л
л

л
л

л
м

л
л

л
м

л
н

л҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜǊ
π.
ŀǎ
ŜŘ

2
0

с
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

т
л

мо
ср

҈
/Ǌ
ŜŘ

Ŝƴ
ǘƛŀ

ƭǎ
0

л
р

л
л

л
л

л
л

м
л

л
л

с
л҈

a
{D

0
с

м
л

л
л

л
м

л
л

л
л

р
мо

л҈
9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Ř
2

0
м

л
н

мм
л

м
м

н
л

л
м

л
мф

фр
҈

9Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘ

1
8

н
л

п
м

л
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

т
оф

҈
a
ŜŘ

ƛŀ
ƴ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ

1
8

.0
0

$
   

  
но

Φс
л

Ϸ 
   

π
мт

Φр
л

Ϸ 
 

   
но

Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
   

π
π

π
π

π
π

π
π

но
Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
 

мн
у҈

P
Y

 2
2

/2
3

 J
o

b
 S

e
e

ke
r 

D
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
s 

b
y 

G
ra

n
t 

Fu
n

d
e

d
 P

ro
gr

am

wŜ
Ǉƻ

Ǌǘ
ƛƴ
Ǝ 
tŜ

Ǌƛƻ
ŘΥ
 Wǳ

ƭȅ
 н
лн

н 
ǘƻ
 Wǳ

ƴŜ
 н
лн

о

31

ATTACHMENT C-2



P
Y

 2
2

/2
3

 J
o

b
 S

e
e

ke
r 

D
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
s 

b
y 

G
ra

n
t 

Fu
n

d
e

d
 P

ro
gr

am

wŜ
Ǉƻ

Ǌǘ
ƛƴ
Ǝ 
tŜ

Ǌƛƻ
ŘΥ
 Wǳ

ƭȅ
 н
лн

н 
ǘƻ
 Wǳ

ƴŜ
 н
лн

о
N

D
W

G
 C

O
V

ID
G

o
al

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

ct
o

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r
Ja

n
u

ar
y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Y

TD
O

n
 T

ar
ge

t

9ƴ
Ǌƻ
ƭƭŜ
Ř

3
0

л
л

л
с

м
л

м
с

о
мт

рт
҈

h
ŎŎ
ǳǇ

ŀǘ
ƛƻ
ƴŀ

ƭ ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝ

1
л

л
л

л
л

л
л

м
л

м
мл

л҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜǊ
π.
ŀǎ
ŜŘ

3
л

л
л

л
м

л
л

л
л

м
оо

҈
/Ǌ
ŜŘ

Ŝƴ
ǘƛŀ

ƭǎ
2

н
л

л
л

м
н

л
л

л
р

нр
л҈

a
{D

3
м

л
л

о
л

л
л

л
л

п
мо

о҈
9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Ř
5

0
м

н
п

с
м

л
л

л
л

мп
ну

҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘ

3
0

л
п

л
н

м
л

л
л

л
т

но
҈

a
ŜŘ

ƛŀ
ƴ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ

3
4

.0
0

$
   

  
π

нф
Φу
у

Ϸ 
   

π
ол

Φл
л

Ϸ 
   
   

мр
Φр
л

Ϸ 
 

   
π

π
π

π
нф

Φу
у

Ϸ 
   
 

уу
҈

C
N

A
G

o
al

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

ct
o

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r
Ja

n
u

ar
y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Y

TD
O

n
 T

ar
ge

t

9ƴ
Ǌƻ
ƭƭŜ
Ř

8
0

л
л҈

9Ƴ
Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜǊ
π.
ŀǎ
ŜŘ

8
0

л
л҈

/Ǌ
ŜŘ

Ŝƴ
ǘƛŀ

ƭǎ
3

5
л

л҈
a
{D

6
0

л
л҈

9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Ř
4

0
л

л҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘ

3
5

л
л҈

a
ŜŘ

ƛŀ
ƴ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ

2
7

.0
0

$
   

  
π

Ϸ 
 

   
л҈

A
R

P
A

 #
1

G
o

al
Ju

ly
A

u
gu

st
Se

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
ct

o
b

e
r

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r
D

e
ce

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Y
TD

O
n

 T
ar

ge
t

9ƴ
Ǌƻ
ƭƭŜ
Ř

8
0

нн
мм

му
нп

оп
мл

мм
ф

мп
ф҈

¢Ǌ
ŀƛ
ƴƛ
ƴƎ

 όh
ŎŎ
 κ 
²
.[
ύ

6
0

π
π

м
о

р
м

мл
мт

҈
/ƻ

Ƴ
Ǉƭ
Ŝǘ
ŜŘ

 ¢
Ǌŀ
ƛƴ
ƛƴ
Ǝ

N
/A

π
π

м
м

м
л

о
л҈

9Ȅ
ƛǘŜ

Ř
8

0
π

π
л

л
л

л
л

л҈
9Ƴ

Ǉƭ
ƻȅ

ŜŘ
 !
ǘ 9

Ȅƛ
ǘ

6
0

π
π

л
л

л
л

л
л҈

a
ŜŘ

ƛŀ
ƴ 
²
ŀƎ
Ŝ

2
7

.0
0

$
   

  
π

π
π

π
π

π
π

л҈

32



Key 3-Year WIOA Indicator Trends

PY2022/23 - July 2022 - February 2023

л
мл
нл
ол

WIOA Adult/DW Enrollments

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л
р

мл
мр

WIOA Youth Enrollments

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л
р

мл
мр

WIOA Adult/DW in Training

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л

мл

нл

WIOA Adult/DW Earn & Learns

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л
мл
нл
ол

WIOA Adult/DW Completions

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л

р

мл

мр

WIOA Youth Completions

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л
р

мл
мр

WIOA Adult/DW Employment

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

л

р

мл

WIOA Youth Employment

C¸нлнм C¸нлнн C¸нлно

104

23

93

32

10

645

153

35

68

30 24372

5512

123 29

732

130 19

754

33

ATTACHMENT C-3



K
e

y 
P

e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
al

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

ec
Y

TD
%

G
o

al

To
ta

l c
lie

n
t 

se
ss

io
n

s 
2

02
3 

Y
T

D
2

,2
00

му
п

мс
р

му
с

нп
п

нс
п

нм
м

1
2

5
4

5
7

%

To
ta

l C
lie

n
t 

H
o

u
rs

 Y
T

D
1

,7
00

пм
у

нс
с

нф
с

ор
о

от
нΦ
тр

ну
рΦ
тр

1
9

9
1

.5
1

1
7

%

To
ta

l A
ct

iv
e 

C
lie

n
ts

 (
N

ap
a)

75
0

рл
с

рм
р

рм
ф

рн
п

рм
п

рл
п

5
2

4
6

9
%

To
ta

l A
ct

iv
e 

C
lie

n
ts

 (
So

la
n

o
)

1
,5

00
мо

нс
мо

рп
мо

сп
мо

уф
мо

фо
мо

фм
1

3
8

9
9

3
%

To
ta

l A
ct

iv
e 

C
lie

n
ts

 (
C

e
n

te
r)

 
2

,2
50

му
он

му
сф

му
уо

мф
мо

мф
оо

мф
оф

1
9

1
3

8
5

%

Jo
b

s 
C

re
at

e
d

70
пп

нр
мф

л
м

ру
1

4
7

2
1

0
%

N
ew

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

St
ar

ts
 

23
н

н
о

л
м

мн
2

0
8

7
%

C
h

an
ge

 in
 S

al
es

 
5,

5
70

,0
0

0.
0

0
$ 

   
  

$
5,

5
6

9
,6

30
.0

0
7,

7
64

,7
06

.0
0

$ 
   

  
2

25
,4

7
4.

0
0

$ 
   

  
-

$
  

   
 

1
00

,0
0

0.
0

0
$

   
   

6
65

,3
1

1.
1

8
$

   
   

1
4,

3
2

5
,1

21
.1

8
$

   
   

 
2

5
7

%

D
o

lla
r 

am
t 

o
f 

lo
an

s/
eq

u
it

y 
15

,6
00

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

$1
,2

63
,7

17
.0

0
54

1
,2

37
.0

0
$ 

 
   

 
5

44
,2

5
0.

0
0

$ 
   

  
3

00
,0

0
0.

0
0

$
   

   
7

3,
0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

   
 

1
,2

22
,7

7
0.

5
0

$
  

3
,9

44
,9

7
4.

5
0

$
  

   
 

2
5

%

Tr
ai

n
in

g 
Se

ss
io

n
s 

h
e

ld
 

70
мт

мп
мо

нн
ну

мм
1

0
5

1
5

0
%

# 
o

f 
at

te
n

d
e

es
 

1
00

0
ну

у
нл

т
нс

с
пн

п
пп

п
мн

у
1

7
5

7
1

7
6

%

Fo
cu

s 
A

re
as

:

{Ƙ
ƻƻ

ǘƛƴ
Ǝ 
ŀƴ

ǘƘ
ŜƳ

 Ǿ
ƛŘ
Ŝƻ

 Ŧƻ
Ǌ Ŏ

Ŝƴ
ǘŜ
Ǌ 

9ƭ
ŜŎ
ǘǊ
ƛŎ
 ƭŜ
ŀŦ
 ō
ƭƻ
ǿ
ŜǊ
 Ǝ
Ǌŀ
ƴǘ
  

b
ŀǇ

ŀ 
Ŧƻ
ǊƎ
ƛǾ
ŀō

ƭŜ
 ƭƻ

ŀƴ
 Ǉ
Ǌƻ
ƎǊ
ŀƳ

 
b
ŀǇ

ŀ 
!Ŏ

ŎŜ
ƭŜ
Ǌŀ
ǘƻ
Ǌ ǎ
ǘŀ
Ǌǘ
ƛƴ
Ǝ 
{Ŝ
Ǉ 
р

SB
D

C
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
e

p
o

rt
 J

u
n

e

34

ATTACHMENT C-4





AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

SUBJECT: Job Quality Framework MEETING DATE 
July 21, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 
VIII.B

FROM: Heather Henry 
President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 
YES       NO 

ATTACHMENTS 
A 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is staff and Planning & Oversight Committee’s recommendation that the Board of Directors hear 
background information regarding job quality, as well as discuss how the WDB and the Board would 
like to move forward on building awareness of Job Quality elements. 

SUMMARY 
The Planning and Oversight Committee requested a discussion on key workforce topics and 
opportunities, with staff background information and robust discussions. A current workforce topic that 
was introduced to the Planning &Oversight Committee is job quality and its connection to low-wage 
work and the challenges businesses are currently facing in hiring and retaining low-wage workers. 

DISCUSSION 
Job quality has become a key workforce topic of conversation in the post-COVID economy and labor 
market. The U.S. Department of Commerce states that “job quality is not just about the job; it is a 
combination of key drivers that are important to each worker’s overall employment experience.” As a 
result of COVID, low-wage workers have become harder to find and engage. This has caused multiple 
workforce and economic leaders to reevaluate job quality and its place in the business community. 

Below is a recent article series in the Harvard Business Review’s May/June 2023 issue focused on low-
wage workers entitled “How to Hang on to Your Frontline Workers”: 

• The High Cost of Neglecting Low-Wage Workers
• The Obstacles to Creating Good Jobs
• “You’ve Got to Set Your People Up to Succeed”

Article highlights include: 
• The change companies need to make in how they perceive the recent labor shortages
• For employers, investments in training and mentorship of low-wage workers result in greater

productivity, easier recruitment of critical positions, reduced turnover rates, improvement in
customer service, and an increased ability to attract frontline workers

• Mistakes that Employers Make:
o They don’t realize low-wage workers want to stay with them
o The underestimate the importance of location and stability
o They underestimate workers’ goodwill
o They leave worker to initiate career discussion
o They disregard low-wager workers’ strategic importance
o They fail workers on mentorship, career pathways, and guidance on learning and

development

35

https://hbr.org/2023/05/the-high-cost-of-neglecting-low-wage-workers
https://hbr.org/2023/05/the-obstacles-to-creating-good-jobs?ab=seriesnav-spotlight
https://hbr.org/2023/05/youve-got-to-set-your-people-up-to-succeed?ab=seriesnav-spotlight


• Employers can unlock the potential of low-wage workers by:
o Understanding the business case for investment in low-wage workers
o Facilitate better top-down communication to low-wage workers
o Get to know the barriers workers face
o Collaborate with other companies

• Obstacles employers face in questioning the conventional wisdom that bad frontline jobs are
necessary to compete:

o Employers think their business model won’t support higher investment in people.
“Many executives have been taught that labor is just another cost to be minimized, and
market pay is the right pay, even if it’s not a living wage.”

o Employers believe they can’t trust frontline employees. “There is a grave disconnect
between what’s happening on the front lines and what executives think is happening.”

o Employers believe the investment in frontline jobs won’t pay off
o Employers believe it is too much of a risk to change their model

WDB Planned Solutions: 
The WDB has been working to address these solutions in the following ways: 

• Dissemination of a Job Quality Framework that outlines the key job quality elements, case
studies of job quality projects, highlights of local employers dedicated to job quality, and tools
for stakeholders and businesses to improve job quality

• Business training series for businesses on how to improve job quality
• Development and launch of an Employer Resource Network where employers can collectively

provide barrier reductions and career pathway planning to staff through a shared Success Coach

REPORT PREPARED BY 
Heather Henry, President / Executive Director. Please contact April Ziomek-Portillo at 
aziomek@solanowdb.org  should you have any questions regarding the information outlined in this 
report. 

36

mailto:aziomek@solanowdb.org


North Bay Workforce 
Job Quality
Framework

North Bay Employment 
Connection
The North Bay's 
Workforce Regional 
Planning Unit

Goal:
Promoting Jobs that 
Work for Everyone

Courtesy of Factory_OS, Vallejo, CA
37

ATTACHMENT A



North Bay 
Workforce 
Areas

Solano 
County

Sonoma 
County

Why Job Quality?

Workforce Alliance: Lake, 
Marin, Mendocino, & Lake 
Counties

      For most of the half-century following World War II, California’s economy was characterized by an expanding 
middle class. It was a middle class built on a range of blue collar and white collar jobs that offered some stability and 
middle class wages. However, the job structure began to shift in California due to a mix of factors, and incomes and 
wages grew more unequal as a result.
     Low wage workforces in such occupations as caregiving, retail, and general laborer, continue to lag in wages and 
advancement opportunities. At the same time employers continue to have difficulty filling job openings in these 
occupations.

The emphasis on job quality can bring several values to the local and state economies:

                                                    - Michael Bernick, CWA Research Director and Former CA EDD Director
                                                      Heather Henry, President/ED of Solano's Workforce Board

For employers, a reduction in the high turnover in many of the lower wage jobs, and development of a more stable 
and skilled workforce.
For local elected officials and local communities, a middle class that has a stake in the economic system and 
can contribute through tax revenue, spending on local businesses, and social capital.
For workers and their households, greater income stability, opportunities for building wealth, and pride in 
contributing to the workplace and broader social structure.

North Bay Employers 
Dedicated to Job Quality

Top left: Paradise Valley 
Estates, Fairfield, CA

 
Top Right: Tomorrow House, 

serving the North Bay 
 

Bottom Left: All Weather 
Architectural Aluminum, 

Vacaville, CA
 

Bottom Right: Petaluma 
Health Center,  Petaluma, CA 

38

https://solanoemployment.org/
https://joblinksonoma.org/workforce-investment-board/
https://www.workforcealliancenorthbay.org/


average living wage for 
1 adult with no children*

of US HR staff believe learning 
and development are a strategic 
priority*

$21.12

35%

Job quality is a continuum with 
multiple avenues for improving 
the quality of a job.

"I never gave myself the opportunity to see what I'm worth and 
what I'm capable of. This job has given me that opportunity. It 

makes me feel whole inside, just to see my kids' faces when I 
come home and I'm off work."

California’s workforce system, its 45 workforce boards and stakeholders, is giving 
increased attention to the issue of job quality. They are launching projects to 
improve working conditions, mobility opportunities, and wages. Businesses are 
partnering with workforce boards to increase skills development, take advantage of 
incentive programs, and develop other creative ways to improve job quality.

Five Elements of Job Quality:

—  Matt, a framer with Factory_OS

of north bay's jobs are 
considered low-wage*

49.4%

1S E L F  S U F F I C I E N T  WA G E S
High quality jobs have wages sufficient to cover basic living expenses 

and provide a predictable and stable income with opportunities to 

build assets.

2B E N E F I T S
High quality jobs have a package of benefits that facilitate a healthy 

and stable life. Typically, these include health insurance, paid time off, 

family/medical leave, a retirement savings plan, and disability and life 

insurance.

3W O R K I N G  C O N D I T I O N S
High quality jobs have working conditions that are safe with 

predictable hours and are free from discrimination and harassment.

4P O S I T I V E  C U LT U R E
High quality jobs are for employers who foster a business culture 

where one's work is valued and where workers can provide input in 

their job design and can voice their concerns and ideas for 

improvement.

5S K I L L S  D E V E LO P M E N T
High quality jobs have opportunities for on-the-job skills development 

and accessible options to learn and grow as part of a career pathway.

$

of the workforce region's 
households are uninsured*

17.2%

39



   Today, there are approximately 1,100 skilled nursing facilities in 
California, who employ 58,000 Certified Nursing Assistants 
(CNA). The California Association of Health Facilities (CAHF) 
estimated in 2022 the average CNA wage statewide at $17.29 an 
hour. In 2022, CAHF also estimated turnover in CNA positions at 
more than 52% annually. The majority of CNAs are women of 
color (84% are female and 74% are minority) and few continue 
their career ladder, providing opportunities for increased job 
quality.
  Beginning late 2022, the North Bay workforce region's local 
Workforce Development Boards have been partnering with 
CAHF, the National Association of Healthcare Assistants, 
workforce stakeholders, and long-term care facilities in the North 
Bay Area to pilot an initiative to improve job quality and wages for 
CNAs. The CNA Upskilling Program will provide three levels of 
CNA microcredentials tied to wage increases for CNAs at 
participating skilled nursing and long-term care facilities.

* Sources:
- MIT's living wage calculator
- North Bay COVID Impact Report
- Metropolitan Transportation Commission's Vital Signs
- 68 Training Industry Statistics for 2023

Case Study: CNA Upskilling Program

Current North Bay Workforce Job Quality Projects

Job Quality Tools:

A library of resources to support 
leaders in a variety of fields in 
adopting practices to strengthen job 
quality in their own organization and 
in their communities.

A toolkit that provides strategies and 
actions to help small-to-medium 
sized organizations recruit and 
retain a high-performing workforce.

Compiled by the Workforce Development 
Board of Solano County, April 2023

Aspen Institute's 
Job Quality Tools

U.S. Dep't. of Commerce 
Job Quality Toolkit

01
 
 
 

02
 
 
 
 

03

NBEC Regional Dashboard
With support from the California Workforce Development Board's regional 
implementation funds, the North Bay workforce planning unit developed a 
dashboard to track regional Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
outcomes by equity measures to ensure quality job training and placements.

Napa Hospitality Industry Partnership 
Napa Hospitality Industry Partnership (HIP) is led by lodging and restaurant 
employers and supported by a range of community partners. Napa HIP invests 
in the future of the Napa Hospitality Industry through collaboration, industry 
education, and employee sustainability to build a world-class workforce.

Healthcare On-the-Job Training
Sonoma Workforce Investment Board has been partnering with Petaluma 
Health Center to employ vulnerable individuals into On-the-Job Training (OJT) 
placements across departments and provide quality training to upskill new 
hires. The average wage for these positions is $23.15/hr with benefits.

40

https://livingwage.mit.edu/
https://solanoemployment.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/NBEC-Workforce-and-Analytic-Services-FINAL-050922.pdf
https://www.vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/
https://research.com/careers/training-industry-statistics#:~:text=39%25%20of%20midsize%20companies%20use,based%20or%20online%20learning%20methods
https://www.aspeninstitute.org/longform/job-quality-tools-library/
https://www.commerce.gov/work-us/job-quality-toolkit


 

 

Current Committees and Members 
 
Standing Committees 
Executive – meets bi-annually   
Vacant (Chair)    Mario Giuliani (Treasurer) 
Chris Churchill (Vice-Chair)  Mary Dugbartey (Member-At-Large) 
Melvinia King (Secretary)  Megan Richards (non-Board Member) 
  
Planning & Oversight  - meets 4th Tuesday (non- Board months),  3:00 – 5:00 p.m. 
Melvinia King (Chair)   Shannon Dodds  
Fadi Halabi (Ex-Officio)  Suzanne Castano 
Gerald Huber    Viola Lujan 
Tiffany Donahue    David Tam 
Dr. Rhuenette Alums (non-Board Member) 
 
Budget  - meets quarterly, 8:30 – 10:00 a.m. 
Mario Giuliani (Chair)   Shannon Dodds  
Fadi Halabi (Ex-Officio)  Dr. Celia Esposito-Noy  
Tim Healer     Megan Richards (non-Board Member) 
Thomas Stuebner 
 



OFFICERS

Vacant, Chair

Business Representative

Chris Churchill, Vice Chair

President,

Advance Marketing

Business Representative

Dr. Melvinia Turner King, Secretary

Executive Director, 

Fighting Back Partnership

Community Workforce Representative

Mario Giuliani, Treasurer

Deputy City Manager,

City of Benicia

Economic Development Representative

MEMBER-AT-LARGE

Mary Dugbartey

Director, Talent & Organizational Development,

NorthBay Healthcare Foundation

Business Representative

______________________

Danny Bernardini

Business Manager,

Napa Solano Building & 

Construction Trades Council

Labor Representative

Suzanne Castano

Team Manager,

CA State Department of Rehabilitation

Vocational Rehabilitation Representative

Kelli Courson

Owner,

Express Employment Professionals

Business Representative

Mark DeWeerdt

Consultant, Center for Organizing & Bargaining,

California Teachers Association

Labor Representative

Shannon Dodds

VP of Operations,

Paradise Valley Estates

Business Representative

Tiffany Donahue

Adult Education Administrator,

Vacaville Unified School District

Education Representative

Dr. Celia Esposito-Noy

President,

Solano Community College

Education Representative

Fadi Halabi

President,

Duracite

Business Representative

Tim Healer

Vice President

Senior Relations Manager

Rabo AgriFinance

Business Representative

Chris Huxsoll

Senior Vice President of Operations

Polaris Pharmaceuticals

Business Representative

Gerald Huber

Director,

Solano County Health & Social Services

Welfare-to-Work/Food Stamps/

Community Development Representative

Glenn Loveall

Special Projects Coordinator,

Napa-Solano Central Labor Council

Labor Representative

Viola Lujan

Director of Business &

Community Relations, 

La Clinica de La Raza, Inc.

Business Representative

Sabrina Martin

Apprenticeship Coordinator,

Operating Engineers Local 3

Apprenticeship Program Representative

Stephen Reese

Chief Executive Officer,

Million Services, Inc.

Business Representative

Thomas Stuebner

Chief Executive Officer,

California Human Development

Community Workforce Representative

David Tam

Cluster Manager – EPM III,

Employment Development Department

Wagner-Peyser Representative


	V.A Meeting Minutes 051923
	V.A Attachment HH Letter
	V.B Internal Monitoring Report
	AGENDA SUBMITTAL
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE
	ATTACHMENTS

	V.B Attachment A SubMonitoring Final Letter AD DW
	VI.A Board Chair Election
	AGENDA SUBMITTAL
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE
	ATTACHMENTS

	VI.B Board Appointment of New Member
	AGENDA SUBMITTAL
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE
	ATTACHMENTS

	VI.B Attachment A
	WDB Board Membership Application_DeannaHurn
	WDB Supplemental Application_Deanna Hurn 
	Letter of Support

	VII.D Reports
	AGENDA SUBMITTAL
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE
	ATTACHMENTS

	VII.D.A Compliance and Operational Report
	Monitoring Report
	Personnel Report

	VII.D.A.1 FY22-23 Expenditure Report - May 23
	VII.D.B Programmatic Highlights
	America’s Job Center of California (AJCC)
	WIOA Programs
	Discretionary Grants
	ARPA Grants
	Small Business Development Center (SBDC)

	VII.D.C.1 AJCC Service Summary July 22 to June 23
	VII.D.C.2 FY23 JSS Performance_June
	VII.D.C.3 WIOA Trends - Jun 23
	VII.D.C.4 SBDC Leadership Board JUNE 2023
	VIII.B Job Quality Framework Discussion
	AGENDA SUBMITTAL
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE
	ATTACHMENTS

	VIII.B Attachment A North Bay Job Quality Framework
	FrontCover.pdf
	Slide 2

	Consent.pdf
	Slide 4

	Action.pdf
	Slide 5

	Reports.pdf
	Slide 8

	Discussion.pdf
	Slide 6

	BackPage.pdf
	Slide 3


	1: Deanna Hurn 
	2: Miracle Math Coaching 
	3: CEO
	4: 3336 North Texas Street , Suite J
	5: Fairfield, Ca. 94533
	1_2: 707-376-9367
	2_2: N/A
	3_2: 
	4_2: Deanna@miraclemathcoaching.com
	County Supervisory District: Solano area 3
	Years: 15
	Months: 6
	CommissionCommitteeRow1: FSUSD Parent Leader Board 
	Office Held if applicableRow1: Parent Leader
	Length of ParticipationRow1: 7
	CommissionCommitteeRow2: LCAP Committee Member
	Office Held if applicableRow2: Advisory Board Member
	Length of ParticipationRow2: 4
	CommissionCommitteeRow3: Solano Kids Thrive Leadership Team
	Office Held if applicableRow3: Community Team Member
	Length of ParticipationRow3: 5
	InstitutionRow1: Sacramento City College
	MajorRow1: Mathematics
	Degree Yes NoRow1: Yes
	Degree Yes NoRow1_2: 
	YearRow1: 2003
	InstitutionRow2: University of California, Santa Barbara
	MajorRow2: Actuarial Statistics
	Degree Yes NoRow2: Yes
	Degree Yes NoRow2_2: 
	YearRow2: 2006
	InstitutionRow3: University of California, Berkeley Extension
	MajorRow3: CTE Credential 
	Degree Yes NoRow3: N/A
	Degree Yes NoRow3_2: 
	YearRow3: 2008
	InstitutionRow4: 
	MajorRow4: 
	Degree Yes NoRow4: 
	Degree Yes NoRow4_2: 
	YearRow4: 
	OrganizationRow1: Miracle Math Coaching 
	CityStateRow1: Fairfield,Ca.
	PositionRow1: CEO
	YearRow1_2: 2008-Present
	OrganizationRow2: Liberty Church 
	CityStateRow2: Fairfield,Ca. 
	PositionRow2: Adopt-A School Tutoring Program Dir. 
	YearRow2_2: 2015-Present
	OrganizationRow3: California All Children Thrive Equity Advisory Board 
	CityStateRow3: Sacramento,Ca
	PositionRow3: Equity Advisory Board member
	YearRow3_2: 6/2022-6/2023
	OrganizationRow4: 
	CityStateRow4: 
	PositionRow4: 
	YearRow4_2: 
	Name: Deanna Hurn
	Date: 
	Business Private SectorNonGovernmental: On
	Community Based Organization: Off
	EconomicBusiness Development Agency: Off
	Education Please check the appropriate box: Off
	Governmental Entity: Off
	Labor Organization: Off
	State Certified Apprenticeship Program: Off
	Wagner Peyser Program: Off
	Title I Rehabilitation Act Program: Off
	Youth EmploymentEducation Provider: Off
	Adult School: Off
	Community College: Off
	Name of Business: Miracle Math Coaching Brain-Based Learning Center
	B_Yes: On
	C_Yes: Off
	D_Yes: On
	B_No: Off
	C_No: On
	D_No: Off
	F_Yes: On
	undefined_2: 13
	F_No: Off
	Benicia: Off
	Dixon: Off
	Vallejo: Off
	FairfieldSuisun: On
	Rio Vista: Off
	Vacaville: Off
	Organization Name: Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of Commerce
	3B_Yes: Off
	3B_No: On
	Date_2: 


